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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dear shareholders of KVB Kunlun:

On December 15, 2017, KVB Kunlun underwent the successful
transfer of listing from the Growth Enterprise Market to the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, marking a
perfect conclusion for the Group’s 2017 annual work. The Group’s
successful transfer to the Main Board enables us to become the
first foreign exchange industry stock in Greater China. It will also
inject more robust development drive into the Group, enhancing the
Group’s market competitiveness while increasing the confidence of
investors and shareholders. This is the well-deserved result of the
unabated hard work of the Company’s outstanding team.

Looking back to 2017, the volatility of the market has again hit a
record low, generating a huge impact on the trading environment
and profitability. At the same time, global compliance costs
continued to rise, and geopolitics has led to deep-seated regional
economic protectionism. The foreign exchange industry has faced
extremely severe challenges. Under such adversity, KVB Kunlun
has strictly adhered to its bottom line of the cost and risk control
with the relentless efforts of all staff. In 2017, the Group achieved
a total annual revenue of approximately HK$ 514.9 million, and
recorded an annual profit of approximately HK$ 27.4 million, with
a net increase of 35% in deposits. The number of new customers
increased by 6% over 2016. The year-round mission of the Group
has been completed.

In the field of financial technology, the Group has successfully
completed the research and development and the launching of its
Treasury System. In addition to enhancing the depth and breadth of
the Group’s internal treasury management, such development has
successfully exported the Group’s foreign exchange and treasury
solutions, and is beneficial to the strategic transformation of the
Company, providing full-chain enterprise foreign exchange and
treasury management services for the real economy in respect to
the mechanisms from business process reengineering to system
automation docking, with products ranging from financial subject
matters to derivative risk hedging.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Looking ahead to 2018, we believe that the uncertainty of the
global economic trend remains. The risk of trade friction between
major economies has increased. Central banks in various countries
have tightened quantitative easing policies and raised interest
rates. They will maintain their countries’ economic stability through
trade wars, protective monetary policies from central banks and
other means to avoid the overheating effect from the aggregation
of economic stimulus policies. After experiencing wild global
virtual currency volatility in late 2017, regulators will accelerate
their implementation of policies and regulations to improve the
compliance, stability and legitimacy of global electronic trading
markets. We also see that in the coming years, geopolitics is likely
to become the fuse of the “gray rhino” incident in the course of the
global economy. The risks to the market are huge. KVB Kunlun will
be well-prepared in terms of risk control by responding promptly
and strictly adhering to its risk control. With many years of trading
experience and insights into the future, the Group will actively
respond to every vigorous market fluctuation.

We will make full use of our listing status in Hong Kong and the
financing advantages of the Main Board to strive to shift our
business direction to service real economy through strategic
cooperations and business mergers and acquisitions, and
maximize the Group’s advantages in offshore financial products
and services in line with the national “One Belt and One Road”
Initiative. Such measures include utilizing its corporate foreign
exchange and treasury management as the core to offer more
outbound companies in the PRC with full-chain financial services
ranging from management system implementation to risk hedging.
It enables enterprise customers to fully identify the exchange rates
and interest rate risks of different currencies and realize multi-
currency transaction, global settlement, financial automation and
intelligence risk management through the Group’s advanced
financial technology platform and the sophisticated network of
counterparties from behind. We hope to create a Hong Kong-
centered offshore financial eco-network in a shared manner so that
the real economy, in particular the SMEs, can step beyond barriers
to professional knowledge and financial products and experience
undifferentiated high standards of service. This is the practice of
real inclusive finance.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Group will also continue to explore the efficiencies that
blockchain technology would bring to our existing systems and
information transmission. It will also prudently promote the trading
and manageability of virtual currencies under its corporate treasury
management system and provide diversified asset deployment
possibilities for enterprise customers.

With vast experience and great aspirations, we have gone from
strength to strength, and will excel and make ourselves an even
stronger and superb kunlun! 2018 is a year to carry forward with
huge industry changes and opportunities amid risks. As the leading
stock in the Greater China region’s foreign exchange industry, we
understand our social responsibilities and mission and will work to
create greater value for KVB Kunlun, our shareholders, investors
and customers.

LIU Stefan
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

16 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017, together
with the audited comparative figures for the corresponding year in
2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Business review

During the year under review, we experienced a period of
unfavorable trading conditions due to the low market volatility
throughout the year. The total revenue increased with an increase
in the clients’ trading volume during the year under review, by
comparing to the figures of the year of 2016.

The year started off with the ‘Trump trade’, with the expectation
of strong performance of USD and equity market, since the US
economic data had reasonable positive feedbacks along with
Federal Open Market Committee interest rate hike several times.
The market also experienced unexpected swings due to geopolitics
events, such as Brexit negotiation, North Korea crisis, and ‘Trump-
Rassia Ties'. In general, in periods of elevated volatility, customer
trading volumes tend to increase. However, significant swings in
market volatility can also result in increased customer trading losses
and higher turnover. It is difficult to predict volatility and its effects
on the FX market.

Gold was the most popular traded product by our customers. In FX
products, EUR/USD was the most traded pair, followed by USD/JPY
and GBP/USD.

Gold mainly traded within a price range of $211.40 USD/ounce.
The highest price of gold was traded at $1,357.60 USD/ounce and
the lowest at $1,146.20 USD/ounce in the year under review. The
price range of gold is narrower when compared with that in 2016.
The price range of gold was $313.40 USD/ounce, the highest at
$1,375.30 USD/ounce, and the lowest at $1,061.90 USD/ounce
during 2016.

In the currency market, the price of the EUR/USD was traded in a
wider price range in 2017, compared with the price movement in
2016. The highest and the lowest level of the EUR/USD were seen
to be 1.2092 and 1.0341 respectively, a nearly 1,751-pips trading
range during 2017, compared to a nearly 1,264-pips trading range
during 2016, the highest was 1.1616 and the lowest was 1.0352.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The retail margin FX trading market is highly competitive. The
competitors include international multi-product trading firms,
other online trading firms, and financial institutions. We expect the
market to remain very competitive in the foreseeable future. We
are constantly looking for ways to improve our customer service
level and meet the needs of our clients, by providing more trading
opportunities in the global financial markets.

Total income

The total income of the Group increased by approximately 42.0%
to approximately HK$514.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 from approximately HK$362.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2016.

A. Leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income of
the Group increased by approximately 29.7% to approximately
HK$397.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 from
approximately HK$306.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. This was mainly due to the increased trading volume during
the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to the year ended
31 December 2016.

B. Cash dealing income

The cash dealing income of the Group decreased by approximately
73.3% from approximately HK$4.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to approximately HK$1.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. The decrease was mainly attributable to lower
trading volume.

C. Fee and commission income

The fees and commission income of the Group increased from
approximately HK$55.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2016 to approximately HK$108.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The increase was mainly due to the increase in
commission earning benefited from the increase in trading volume.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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D. Other income

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
an exchange gain of approximately HK$5.4 million, the
recorded exchange loss for year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately HK$5.8 million. This was mainly due to the year-end
translation of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency into
local reporting currency by KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Referral expenses and other charges

The referral expenses and other charges of the Group increased by
approximately 86.6% to approximately HK$299.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 from approximately HK$160.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The increase was mainly due
to increase in the trading volume of the clients referred by services
providers.

Staff costs

The staff costs of the Group decreased by approximately 5.3% to
approximately HK$56.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 from approximately HK$60.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2016. The decrease was mainly due to decrease in staff
entitlements and expenses recognized in respect of staff share
option.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by approximately 53.7%
to approximately HK$12.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 from approximately HK$8.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2016. The increase was mainly due to the upgrade
of computer software, hardware and the newly capitalized office
equipment for the year under review.

Lease payments under land and buildings

Lease payments under land and buildings increased by
approximately 6.8% to approximately HK$13.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 from approximately HK$12.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The increase was mainly due
to the increased rental expenses at the Beijing office and increased
rental at other offices from lease renewal.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group
increased to approximately HK$96.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 from approximately HK$66.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. This increase was primarily due to
the increase in customer promotion expenses by approximately
HK$11.7 million during the year ended 31 December 2017
as compared with the year ended 31 December 2016 as the
result of active reimburse client transaction fee occurred in
2017. Advertising and marketing expenses also increased by
approximately HK$6.7 million during the year ended 31 December
2017 as compared with the year ended 31 December 2016.

Net profit and net profit margin

For the reasons set forth above, the Group achieved a net profit of
approximately HK$27.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 compared with the net profit of approximately HK$38.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016. The net profit margin for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately 5.3%.

In summary, the decrease in profitability of the Group was primarily
contributed by:

e higher referral expenses and other charges due to an increase
in trading volumes which rebate is required to be paid to the
service providers.

o increased expenses in certain main items as described above
due to business expansion.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year under review, the operations of the Group have
been financed principally by equity capital, cash generated by the
Group’s business operations and the cash and bank deposits.

As at 31 December 2017, cash and bank balances held by
the Group amounted to approximately HK$517.8 million (2016:
approximately HK$477.8 million). There was nil bank borrowings of
the Group as at 31 December 2017 (2016: approximately HK$55.8
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio calculated on the basis of net debts (financial
lease obligation and bank borrowings) over the total shareholders’
equity as at 31 December 2017 was approximately 0.05% (2016:
10.86%).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group recorded an exchange
gain of approximately HK$5.4 million (2016: loss of approximately
HK$5.8 million). This was mainly due to the year-end translation
of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency into local
reporting currency by a subsidiary of the Group in New Zealand.
The foreign currency risk is managed proactively by regular review
of the currency positions in the basket of currency mix. In order to
minimize the exposure of the Group to risk, the Group has hedge
strategy based on prevailing market conditions and working capital
requirements of subsidiaries.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the capital structure of the Group
consisted of equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

NEW PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group launched new commodities contracts for difference
(CFD), including AL5000KG, CU5000KG, NIT000KG, XAG15KG,
CPD1KG and XPT1KG during the year ended 31 December 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES DURING THE
PERIOD UNDER REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group engaged a total of 76
employees (2016: a total of 86). Total staff costs including
Directors’ remuneration for the period under review amounted
to approximately HK$56.9 million (2016: approximately HK$60.1
million). The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the
prevailing market practices and are determined on the basis of
performance and experience of individual employees. The Group
provides retirement benefits in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in the place where the staff is employed.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme pursuant to
which the Directors and employees of the Group are entitled to
participate.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, certain bank balances of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$86.0 million (2016: approximately
HK$158.9 million) were used to secure the banking facilities and the
offices lease bonds. As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not
have any material contingent liabilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

We plan to:

1. expand operations in the worldwide overseas Chinese
communities;

2. increase the range of our financial services and products;

3. further upgrade our online trading platform; and

4. develop the high net worth and sophisticated institutional
clients segment.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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The biographical details in respect of the directors (the “Directors”)
and the senior management of KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) as at
the date of this annual report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LIU Stefan (2555 4E), aged 51, is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Liu is one of the responsible officers of KVB Kunlun
International (HK) Limited (“KVB HK”) and is also a director of KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB Holdings”) and certain subsidiaries
of KVB Holdings, which do not belong to the Group.

Mr. Liu was appointed as the managing director of the Group in
March 2006 and the country manager of New Zealand and Australia
in August 2011. He was appointed as a Director of the Company on
9 November 2010 and is responsible for the overall management
and strategic development of the Group.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as the managing director of
Aiming International (New Zealand) Co. Limited from August 1997
to August 2001 and was responsible for fostering the development
plan, structuring investment direction and strategy, liaising and
maintaining relationships with business partners and searching
for and maintaining public relationship with potential strategic
investors.

With his previous and current positions in the Group and other
companies, Mr. Liu has obtained over 15 years of experience in the
forex market which is relevant to the management, operation and
development of the Group. Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s degree
in arts from the Tianjin Foreign Studies University (K3Z5MNE:E A Z)
in July 1989.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B2 iy B0 [5% 4 Fill 4 [ 5 BR 23 ]

RAFHRAY  EHERBRSREBRARA
Al ([ARA] - EREMBARGRE AEE])
EX((EF D EREEBNBEENT

HMITES

BIFRFE K E 5158 BEA D RITTIRARRE - &
MAERABAETHBRARIMNES 2IL4EAR
ERBER(EB) BRAFT(KVBEEDOE
BEABZ— < BIEE TR TERAEEHKVYB
Kunlun Holdings Limited ([ KVB Holdings|) &
HETHBAFTMES -

BEANR _ZETERFZAEZERAEENE
FRKEIMR T ——F N\ ARZERBAEH
MMM RIEIE - RN —F—FF+— AN
HEZERARRES  BEASENEREE
B REMER -

IIAREER - BIEER—NNEENAEZS
T T — £\ A TAming International (New
Zealand) Co. LimitedBIE HBLKIE - BB B
BRERFTE - BIRIRE T AR - AL
EAER LR BER A R Y I 4 15 BB E R B
"EEMQHBRK -

B L BREENARE R EM AR A BEREE
ERT - ERIMNETISTEBI5FRER - FLLK
SR EAEEER  CENERESMAH - 2
FER—NN\NFLABERRINEEARNEX

B+ 27 -



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Zhi Da (&3 5L 4), aged 64, is the Chairman of the board
of Directors. Mr. Li is one of the founders of the Group and one of
the substantial shareholders of the Company. Mr. Li was a director
of each of KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited and KVB HK since
their respective incorporation until May 2009 and June 2009,
respectively. Mr. Li is also a director of each of KVB Holdings, LXL
Capital | Limited and LXL Capital Il Limited. Mr. Li was the legal
representative of a private company engaged in the business
of production and sales of cosmetics in the PRC, including the
brand “Mininurse”. Since the disposal of the cosmetics business
in December 2003, Mr. Li has diversified his investments into
other business areas including tourism business in the PRC. Mr. Li
obtained his master’s degree in project management from the
Zhejiang University (T X2 in March 1994. Mr. Li was appointed
as a Director on 30 August 2011.

Mr. Stephen Gregory McCOY, aged 65, joined the Group in
October 2006 as the senior manager of operations and was later
appointed the country manager of Australia in 2008. Mr. McCoy is
also a director of KVB Kunlun Pty Ltd and LXL Capital Ill Limited.
Mr. McCoy is also a director of other subsidiaries of KVB Holdings
which do not belong to the Group. Before joining the Group,
Mr. McCoy worked at Arab Bank Australia Limited as an internal
auditor from May 2002 to December 2003 and later as the head of
operations from January 2004 to October 2006 and was responsible
for managing the operations department of the bank including
treasury settlements, retail operations, loan administration, office
administration, trade finance and product compliance in line with
regulatory authorities and policies and procedures of the bank and
before that, Mr. McCoy worked at Westpac Banking Corporation
for over 30 years from February 1969 to April 2001 and last held
the position of manager of operational risk. With the previous
and current positions held by Mr. McCoy in the Group and other
companies, Mr. McCoy has obtained over 45 years of combined
experience in the financial services industry which is relevant to
the operation and development of the Group. Mr. McCoy was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Guixin (#1272 1), aged 54, joined the Group in April
2011. From June 2005 to July 2007, Ms. Zhao worked at Tianjin
Jiandu Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (K2EHIRERESR
R ®]) which was engaged in property and investment and she
was responsible for providing consultation services in project
financing, cooperation in public affairs and international investment
matters. From May 2003 to August 2007, Ms. Zhao also provided
consultation services in finance and investment related matters to
Tianjin Wanhe Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (K32 E MR E 2%
RBAEFR2A7A]) which was engaged in property and investment. From
July 2001 to October 2003, Ms. Zhao was appointed as the general
manager of the audit department of China Citic Bank, Tianjin branch
and was responsible for managing the overall performance of the
audit department, implementing policies and procedures and other
management work. Ms. Zhao has over 25 years of experience
in accounting and auditing matters including but not limited to
financial analysis, financial management, asset management,
assessment and auditing of financial positions and involvement
in financial and auditing decision making process. Ms. Zhao
completed the course in economics and management organised
by the Party School of Central Committee of the Communist Party
of China (FFHEAFRER) in December 1996. Ms. Zhao further
completed the course in business administration organised by
Nankai University (F8FIA2Z2) in September 1999 and obtained her
master’s degree in arts in international relations in economy and
trade from The Flinders University of South Australia in October
2002. Ms. Zhao was assessed and awarded the qualification of
accountant by the Tianjin branch of the Bank of China in 1992.
Ms. Zhao was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER, aged 60, first joined the Group
in December 2003 as a senior consultant. In June 2005, he was
appointed as the joint Group managing director (group operations
and treasury) and managing director (designate proposed
banking division) and held that position until he left the Group in
April 2008. Since March 2003, Mr. Keyser has been a director of
Keyser Merchant & Capital Finance (New Zealand) Limited which
is engaged in the provision of consultation services and he is
responsible for managing all aspects of such company and acts as
a consultant. From July 1999 to August 2002, Mr. Keyser held the
position of group treasurer to Gensec Ltd. and Gensec Bank. From
September 1996 to March 1997, Mr. Keyser worked at the Swabou
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Building Society Group of Companies as the group managing
director and was responsible for the operations of the group. From
May 1990 to August 1992, Mr. Keyser was appointed the managing
director of Keyser Trading (Pty) Limited and from September
1992 to June 1999, he was appointed the managing director of
Keyser Merchant and Capital Finance (Pty) Limited. Mr. Keyser is
a chartered member of the Institute of Directors in New Zealand
Inc. and a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.
Mr. Keyser has over 25 years of experience in the financial industry.
Mr. Keyser obtained his bachelor’'s degree in industrial psychology,
his honours degree in economics (Cum laude) and his master’s
degree in economics (Cum laude) from the Rand Afrikaans
University in April 1981, April 1982 and April 1983, respectively. Mr.
Keyser was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. LIN Wenhui (M3 #8%4), aged 39, joined the Group in July
2011. Mr. Lin is currently the audit director of Fujian Yango Holdings
Group Limited ({825 EEBR A F]). Mr. Lin was appointed as
a supervisor of supervisory committee in June 2017 and currently
as a chairman of the supervisory committee of Fujian Longking Co.,
Ltd. (SH. 600388) with effect from November 2017. With effect from
1 July 2014, Mr. Lin has temporarily been transferred to the board
of supervisors of SAC in the State Council for the inspection of
enterprises directly under the central government. He was an audit
manager of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Beijing from September
2011 to August 2016. From April 2009 to September 2011, Mr. Lin
was a manager of RSM China Certified Public Accountants (F
IBEEEHATEFT). Mr. Lin served as a project manager in the
taxation and accounting services department of Reanda Certified
Public Accountants (F|REEFTMEBKBREMTAF) from
September 2004 to March 2006 and a manager assistant in the
audit department of the same firm from April 2006 to December
2008. From August 2002 to September 2004, Mr. Lin worked in
the accounting department of the head company of the Beijing
Shougang Oxygen Plant (At R & #i%&RMR) which was engaged in
the production and sales of oxygen and other gases for industrial
enterprises. Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor's degree in accounting
from the Harbin University of Commerce (FAEER 2 AE) in July
2002 and master’s degree in accounting from Renmin University of
China in January 2018. Mr. Lin obtained his certificate of accounting
professional from the Finance Bureau of Beijing (At R BEE) in
June 2003 and passed the PRC’s national accounting examinations
and was awarded the certificate issued by the Committee of the
Registered Accountant Examination of the Ministry of Finance (87
e stemEsxRZ E®) in April 2005. Mr. Lin has been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants recognised
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (FF 2 A R FLFI BB B &B) since
April 2008. Mr. Lin was appointed as a Director on 16 July 2011.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest (F12# 5 4E) is the Chief Financial
Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong
has extensive experience in venture capital, corporate
finance, business development, legal, IT, financial and general
management. Mr. Wong has been the President and Group
Chief Financial Officer of KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited since
November 2011. Previously he was the Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer of China Private Equity Investment Holdings
Limited which is listed on London AIM market. He was in charge
of the private equity investment, portfolio management, corporate
finance activities including fund raising and initial public offering,
financial management, legal services, IT and company secretarial
work. Before that, Mr. Wong was the Chief Financial Officer for
Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research Institute
Company Limited (“ASTRI”) and held management responsibilities
for its overall financial, legal, IT, business development and
corporate finance functions. Before joining ASTRI, Mr. Wong was
the vice president for Vertex Management Pte Ltd (now known
as Vertex Venture Holdings Ltd), focusing in venture investment
in communications, IT and electronics sectors. Previously, he
also held management positions at Guangdong Investment Ltd.,
Transpac Capital Limited and Accenture.

Mr. Wong earned his Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from the University of Hong Kong, received his Master of Science in
investment management from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and Master of Science in Electronic Engineering
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United
Kingdom and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He is also a charter-holder of Chartered Financial Analyst,
United States of America and a member of the Hong Kong Security
Institute.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. ZHANG Rongjun (5R8 & 22T ) is the regional financial
controller of New Zealand and Australia of the Group. Ms. Zhang
joined the Group in December 2002 as the financial controller.
Ms. Zhang has also been a director of KVB NZ since May 2009.
From December 1997 to July 2002, Ms. Zhang served as a senior
accountant at HWI Limited Chartered Accountants and was
responsible for preparing financial statements and tax returns and
providing tax advice. Ms. Zhang has over 20 years of experience
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in accounting matters in New Zealand. Ms. Zhang obtained her
bachelor’'s degree in accounting from the Unitec Institute of
Technology in April 2000. Ms. Zhang has been a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand since January
2002.

Mr. HUANG Songyuan ()Rt 4) is the director of global margin
business. Mr. Huang is also responsible for the management of
investment business of the Group, including foreign exchange,
commodities and equities business. He is currently one of the
responsible officers of KVB HK and KVB AU, and a director and
managing principal of KVB NZ. Mr. Huang joined the Group in
August 2002 as an executive accountant of KVB NZ and was
responsible for general accounting duties, book-keeping and
financial reports. Mr. Huang was the manager of treasury strategy
of KVB NZ and was responsible for the implementation of its dealing
system and the day-to-day running of its global forex dealing
operations and all its associated financial management. Mr. Huang
obtained his bachelor’s degree in accounting from the Sun
Yat-Sen University (FLUAER) in June 1999, his master’s degree
in international business from the Auckland Institute of Studies
at St. Helens, New Zealand in December 2000 and his graduate
diploma in commerce from the University of Auckland in May 2002.
Mr. Huang became a chartered financial analyst of the CFA Institute
in September 2006. Mr. Huang has been a member of the Institute
of Directors in New Zealand since 2015.

Mr. SO Chi Hang Stephen (#1855 4) is the head of investment
of KVB AU. Mr. So joined the Group in May 2003 as a senior sales
executive of margin forex of KVB AU. He has been the Responsible
Manager (RM) of the Australian Financial Services License (AFSL)
for the company since then. Mr. So is at present a director of KVB
AU. Before joining the Group, Mr. So worked at The Hong Kong
Chinese Bank, Limited and Lippo Securities Holdings Limited from
March 1994 to December 2002 and was responsible for providing
investment advice and dealing with private clients and retail clients,
first as a senior investment consultant in The Hong Kong Chinese
Bank, Limited and thereafter as a senior manager of the global
investment division of Lippo Securities Holdings Limited. Mr. So has
over 25 years of experience in advising clients on financial products
ranging from securities, indices and stock futures and options,
foreign exchanges and other derivatives financial products.
Mr. So obtained his bachelor of arts degree (Economics) from the
University of Sydney, Australia in April 1992. Mr. So also obtained
the diploma in financial services issued by the Australian Financial
Markets Association in 2003.
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KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to high standards of
corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders and other
stakeholders. It has continued and will continue to identify and
adopt the best corporate governance practices appropriate to the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the period from 1 January 2017 to 14 December 2017 and
during the period from 15 December 2017 to 31 December 2017,
the Company has complied with all code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market
(the “GEM Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and all code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of the
Stock Exchange respectively (collectively called the “CG Code”),
except for the following deviations:

Pursuant to code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) without
the executive directors present. The Chairman did not hold any
meeting with non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) without the executive Directors present in 2017
due to the tight schedule of the Chairman. In the absence of the
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer is in the position to facilitate
the effective contribution of non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors), and ensure their views are
communicated and heard by the Board.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent
non-executive directors and the non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. At the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 10 May 2017, Ms. Zhao Guixin, an independent
non-executive Director, was unable to attend that meeting due to
health reason.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) is responsible for the formulation of strategies
and policies, including an oversight of the management. The
management of the Company is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Company under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer.

As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprised six Directors,
including (i) one executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu Stefan (as
Chief Executive Officer); (ii) two non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Li Zhi Da (as Chairman) and Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy;
and (iii) three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms.
Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. The
Company has fulfilled the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules that at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a specific term, and his term of office is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company and the Listing Rules. For all non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, the
term of them has been fixed at 3 years and they are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company and the Listing Rules.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section of
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 14 to
19 of this annual report.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In determining the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, the Board has followed the requirements as set out in
the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors have met the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Chairman of
the Board is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board, and for ensuring that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner,
while the Chief Executive Officer, supported by other members
of the Board and the senior management, is responsible for the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by
the Group. The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer are assumed by Mr. Li Zhi Da, a non-executive
Director, and Mr. Liu Stefan, an executive Director, respectively.

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director, including those appointed
for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. All the retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election. A circular which includes the biographical details of the
retiring Directors who stand for re-election together with the notice
of annual general meeting of the Company will be despatched to
the shareholders of the Company in due course.
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BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Between scheduled meetings,
senior management of the Company from time to time meets with
Directors to discuss the businesses of the Group. In addition,
Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board held seven
board meetings and the Company held one general meeting, and
the attendance records of these meetings are set out below:
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to Attend Attended
Exeen HER20174F
HERE 5810 &7
EEREBERY BREFAE
Executive Directors BTEE
Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer) BIRARE (77 BAEZ) 517 11
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick REBEAE 6/6 111
(resigned on 17 November 2017) (R=—F—+F+—F++HEHE)
Non-executive Directors FBTEES
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman) PEERE(LE) 3/7 1/1
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy 5t & u 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHTES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEELL 517 01
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 79 11
Mr. Lin Wenhui MBS 7 1/1

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors
and officers of the Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Standard of
Dealing”) during the period from 1 January 2017 to 14 December
2017 and the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) during the period from 15 December 2017 to
31 December 2017 as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions in securities of the Company by the Directors.
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Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required Standard of
Dealings and the Model Code during the year ended 31 December
2017.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of the Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
arranged an in-house seminar for and/or provided relevant training
materials to the Directors. A summary of the record of training
received by the Directors is as follows:
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Training on Corporate
Governance Regulatory
Development and/or

Other Suitable Topics
FRLEER EERRE
&k /SEMEEEEZEZI
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer) RIREE S (TTI A ) e
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick RS A
(resigned on 17 November 2017) (RZF—+F+—H++HEE) v
Non-executive Directors FHITESE
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman) FEESRE(FE) 4
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy3t 4 v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYKHTES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEERL L X
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst & v
Mr. Lin Wenhui RSB e £ v

Ms. Zhao Guixin, the independent Non-executive Director (“Ms.
Zhao”) did not attend the in-house seminar arranged by the
Company. Ms. Zhao confirmed that she had read the training
materials provided by the Company in order to keep abreast with
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to evaluate
the performance and determine the remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management of the Group, and evaluate
the performance and make recommendations on any other
employee benefit arrangement.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus
Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms. Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee held four meetings. Details of the attendance of
the Remuneration Committee meetings during the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out below:
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HERE EEEHERE
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HEEZ LT (FE) 4/4
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keysert & 4/4
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR S A 3/4

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee has considered and recommended to the Board,
amongst other things, distribution of the 2016 bonus payments for
the Directors and the senior management of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis
and make recommendations to the Board regarding nomination of
suitable candidate to fill vacancies in the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis
Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms. Zhao Guixin is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the
Nomination Committee meetings are set out below:
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Attended/Eligible to Attend

FERE SEREERE
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HEEZ A (EE) 2/2
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserit 4 2/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui PRI W& 5 A 2/2
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination #HZE_—_Z—+S+_HF=+—HIFE 1%

Committee considered and reviewed the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors, the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board, and the attendance records
of the Board meetings, committees meetings and general meetings.
The Nomination Committee recommended the Board to approve
the proposed sequence for re-election of retiring Directors in 2018
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considers that
the existing policy for nomination, selection and recommendation
for directorship are suitable.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom. The Board has therefore adopted a board diversity
policy which stated that the Board sees diversity as a wide concept
and believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to skills, regional and industry experience, background,
race, gender and other qualities. In informing its perspective on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on
its own business model and specific needs from time to time.
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The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board believes
that such merit-based appointments will best enable the Company
to serve its clients, shareholders and other stakeholders going
forward.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 18 December 2012 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, nominate and monitor external auditors and provide
advice and comments to the Directors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent nonexecutive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Wenhui, Ms. Zhao Guixin and Mr.
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser. Mr. Lin Wenhui is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditors of the Group
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review
of this annual report and financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
held four meetings. The attendance records of the Audit Committee
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out
below:
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Attended/Eligible to Attend

HERE EEREERE
Mr. Lin Wenhui (Chairman) MBS (FE) 4/4
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEEEZ+ 3/4
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keysert 4 4/4

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the management and the auditors of the Company
their audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, legal and regulatory compliance, and
financial reporting matters.

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “CG Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted. The
primary duties of the CG Committee are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendation to the Board.

The CG Committee consists of four members, namely, Mr. Cornelis
Jacobus Keyser, Mr. Liu Stefan, Ms. Zhao Guixin and Mr. Lin
Wenhui. Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser is the chairman of the CG
Committee. All members are independent non-executive Directors,
except Mr. Liu Stefan, who is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the CG Committee
held one meeting. Details of the attendance of the CG Committee
meeting are set out below:
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Attended/Eligible to Attend

HERE EEREERE

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keysert 4
(Chairman) (/) 1/1
Mr. Liu Stefan 2R S E 1/1
Ms. Zhao Guixin AR LT 1/1
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR e A 0/1
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the CG Committee
considered and reviewed the progress on the implementation of
the Group’s corporate governance framework. The CG Committee
also reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company. Besides, the CG Committee considered and reviewed
the environmental, social and governance reporting proposal. The
CG Committee considers that the existing policies and practices of
corporate governance of the Company are suitable.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors ensure the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 55 to 61 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Company’s assets and shareholders’ interests, and, with the
Audit Committee, for reviewing areas of risk and uncertainty, the
operation and effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal
control and the procedures by which these are monitored.
The internal audit department of the Company (“Internal Audit
Department”) is delegated to ensure and maintain sound internal
control functions by monitoring such internal control systems
and procedures constantly so as to ensure that they can provide
reasonable assurance against misstatement or loss and to manage
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems. The internal audit
function is independent of the operating businesses of the Group.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage but not eliminate business risk, to help safeguard the
Group’s assets against fraud and other irregularities, and to give
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material financial
misstatement or loss. In addition, it should provide a basis for the
maintenance of proper and fair accounting records and assist in the
compliance with relevant rules and regulations.
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During the year under review, the Board reviewed all material
internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance
control. It also reviewed with the Audit Committee and the
information from the Internal Audit Department in respect of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems, adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and satisfied that they
were effective and in compliance with the Group’s policies.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
were performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”).

The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit and
non-audit services provided by PwC is set out in the following table:

REREFA - %%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁmwgﬁgﬁ
N (BREVK - B2 RARES) - E=E
)TEE@%V?E@}E?T%B@ C WEERHREE
ZERFIA A SR E A BB IR B E 2 B~ AR
AR AP REBETE 2 ERFERE -
BTEREERZER  TMEMBREFTZAX
NMEBRAEEZHE -

B AT &
AEEBRE—T—tF+_A=T—"HLLFE
MIZBITIFE 2R KBUKE RIS 15T ([ 2
FLpliox B ]) #ET1T -

PR K BUOKERHENA BAEE X MIFEZR
BEN/ BNOEBERSHENTX

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Audit services EZRTE 2,966 2,833
Non-audit services IETFZIRTE 679 611
Total B EE 3,645 3,444

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with shareholders and
management.

During the year under review, the Company Secretary undertook

over 15 hours of professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

In the event that any shareholders of the Company holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company would like to call for an extraordinary
general meeting, please make a written requisition to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong from time to time, making
attention to “The Board of Directors and the Company Secretary”.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meetings under the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company. If shareholders wish to do
S0, they may request to convene an extraordinary general meeting
as stipulated above and specify the proposals in such written
requisition.

For any enquiries, shareholders are welcome to contact the
Company by post to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong, by phone at (852) 3120 8888 or by fax at (852) 3120 8800.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

All corporate communication materials published on The Stock
Exchange website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) are posted on the
Company'’s corporate website (http://www.kvblistco.com) as soon
as practicable after their release. The Company’s constitutional
documents are also available on both websites. During the year
ended 31 December 2017, there have not been any significant
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present its report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2017 by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL RESULTS

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income” of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 16 May 2018 to Monday, 21 May 2018, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfers of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting
at the 2018 Annual General Meeting, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F, Two
Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong
Kong for registration by no later than 4:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on
Tuesday, 15 May 2018.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Business Review and Future Prospect

Since the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on 3 July 2013, the Company has been implementing its
business plans to accomplish its business objectives. A review of
the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development are provided in the section of
“Statement from the Chief Executive Officer” on pages 5 to 7 of this
annual report.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 13 of this
annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to its business and some
are affected by the external environment. The Group’s major risks
are summarized below.

(1) Financial risks

The Group’s principal business activities are exposed to
a variety of key financial risks including credit risk, market
risk (such as interest rate risk and foreign currency risk),
and liquidity risk. Details of the aforesaid key risks and
risk mitigation measures are set out in “Financial Risk
Management” in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(2) Macro-economic environment

Adverse macro-economic changes may affect the business
environment, which may in turn affect the operating results. It is
therefore important that the Group is able to keep track of such
changes of macro-economic environment and swiftly adjusts
its operating policy and business plan under different market
conditions.
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(3) Information technology systems

Financial services sector is highly dependent on information
technology systems and networks. Any material disruption
or slowdown of our IT systems, including a disruption or
slowdown caused by our failure to successfully upgrade
our systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks could
cause a loss of data or operation interruption. Therefore, we
invest continuously in our IT systems so as to keep up with the
technology security.

The above is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group. These may change
over time as new risks and uncertainties emerge and others cease
to be of concern. The Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’s
business objectives and may change or modify plans against the
changing market condition to avert or minimise the risks so as to
attain sustainable business growth of the Group.

Environmental Policy and Performance

We are committed to protect the environment by introducing a
green policy to enhance the awareness of environmental protection
among staff. The Group has implemented internal recycling
programme for office consumables such as toner cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources.

The Group has also implemented energy saving practices in offices
and branch premises where applicable, such as taking initiatives to
reduce paper usage by encouraging the use of websites and online
version of corporate communications. As regards reduction of
power consumption, lighting, air- conditioners and office equipment
will be turned off when not in use.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group has been allocating resources
to ensure the Group’s ongoing compliance with the updated
applicable rules and regulations. During the year under review,
the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with the
GEM Listing Rules (during the period form 1 January 2017 to 14
December 2017), the Listing Rules (during the period from 15
December 2017 to 31 December 2017), the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant rules and regulations.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group’s success lies also on the support from key
stakeholders, including employees, customers, bankers, service
providers and shareholders.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group’s human
resources management is to reward and recognise our employees
by providing a competitive remuneration package, appropriate
incentives, and opportunities within the Group for career
advancement.

Customers

The Group is committed to provide excellent services to our
customers with a view to maintaining steady business and asset
growth as well as long term profitability.

Bankers

To order to ensure adequate market penetration and access, the
Group has maintained excellent relationship with our bankers and
has been soliciting funds from our bankers as and when necessary.

Service Providers

The Group’s good relationships with its key service providers
are important in provision of effective and efficient services to
our customers and meeting business challenges and regulatory
requirements. The key service providers comprise system
and equipment vendors, external consultants which provide
professional services, and other business partners which provide
value-added services to the Group.
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Shareholders

One of the corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate
value to our shareholders. Description of the shareholders’ rights
and our investor relations can be found in the section of “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 20 to 31 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the shares issued during the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account and retained earnings of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company subject to
the provisions of the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company and provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

As at 31 December 2017, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
was approximately HK$382 million (2016: approximately HK$355
million).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the aggregate percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers is approximately
55.62% of the total purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 16.77%.

For the year under review, the aggregate percentage of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 15.89% of the total sales of the Group and the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 6.34%.

At no time during the year have the Directors, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or their associates (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out in the section headed
“Financial Summary” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 2.16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

W

FEEFRHER
REBEFA  NEEZ B AHERN 2 REERE

5K % B IR B 42 56 4955.62% T H AP & A
FER 15 4916.77% °

REBEFERN  XEBZ AAEP Z#HEA%E(L
AREBEHEARREL15.89%  MEFEARF
15 #96.34% -

RFRERFHE - NRRRSHEAERMERRZ
EE FETHRAR  TERRABSF2BHE
AL (REEMAHES N R RBRAE%IA L&)
MERZELTEZEP HEBHER (TR -

BE HEREOAXAQRAZ LTRSS

BE-T—tFT-A=+—HILFE &R
AR BATLBHEE W
ARARZ EHES -

M HE

AEEEBTAEVRFEZXENEERR
EME SR AFRIMBEME] 6 -

BRIREREE

AERBEE-_ZT—tF+_A=+—BLFE
ZRKEFETEFBEHRE S M IEREK T
216 °

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —Z—-G4FE4EH;



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

5

DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick (Resigned on 17 November 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhao Guixin
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
Mr. Lin Wenhui

In accordance with article 84(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Li Zhi Da and Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser shall
retire from office and be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Li Zhi Da will not
stand for re-election while Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser has offered
himself for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors have entered into any service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED B2 iy B0 [5% 4 Fill 4 [ 5 BR 23 ]

=2

(E_T—+F+_A=+T—RHILFERER
REHBEH EFSBEUTES:

HITES

BIfRE ST & (TTIHABEL)
REBELE (RZF—LF+— AT LHFE)

FHITES

FREESE (EE)
Stephen Gregory McCoy4t 4

BIYHTES

HERZ T

Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4
PROOIE 5 A&

BRIBARBMEZMERMAFEAMNE - =
£ 5t & K Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 #5 &3 &
BT BFEHUFEERRNARREERFEA
FRE LERET - FEEAETREE - M
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser4t 4 Bl #1538 (T -

MEREERRAFAS LERBEREEZE
FAIUARBETNAR —FRRMEE OCXER
ERRIN) F AR IE Z RIS EH) ©

BEEC2RBEN

MEEEHAKEEAKEB AR IAKET
AR —FRARMNEEE CEERERIN TAL
LIEZ ERARIEE LD »

AW



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” and Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or at the
end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Securities” below, at no time during the year or at the
end of the year has been/was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company'’s Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, subject
to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in
or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors, the controlling
Shareholders and their respective close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had any business or interest in a business
which competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
below, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
3 June 2013. A summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is for the Group to attract, retain
and motivate talented Participants (as defined below) to strive
for future developments and expansion of the Group.

(b) Participants of the Scheme

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite the
following persons as participants (the “Participants”) of the
Scheme:

(i) any executive or non-executive Director including any
independent non-executive Director or any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the
Group;

(i) any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or
otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects include any
employee or business associate of the Group;

(iii) any consultant (in the areas of legal, technical, financial or

corporate management) and other adviser to any member
of the Group;
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(d)

(iv) any supplier of goods and/or services to the Group; or

(v) any other person whom the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed to the Group.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant, the
Board would take into account such factors as the Board may
at its discretion consider appropriate.

Basis for determining the exercise price and acceptance of
offer

The exercise price of an option to subscribe for shares granted
under the Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board at
its sole discretion and notified to the Participant and shall be
no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which an option is granted; (ii) the average
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date on which an option is granted; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Share.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum in any currency as the
Board may determine) by way of consideration for the grant.

Maximum numbers available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (the
“General Scheme Limit”) unless further shareholders’ approval
is obtained in general meeting, provided that options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the General Scheme Limit.

(c)

(d)
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(e)

®

(9)

Notwithstanding the foregoing the total number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

For each Participant, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and further to
be granted in any 12-month period (including both exercised
and outstanding options) and in the 12-month period up to and
including the acceptance date (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) shall not in isolation or aggregate
exceed 1% of the shares, and any grant of option which would
result in such limit being exceeded shall be approved by the
Company in general meeting with such Participant and any
associate thereof abstaining from voting.

Time of exercise of the option

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period
commencing on the first business day from the date of grant
of option and expiring at the close of business on a date to be
determined and notified by the Directors which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant of option.

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated at the
time of granting the option, there is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 3 July 2013 to offer the grant of an option to
any qualifying participants.
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(h) Movements of the options granted under the Scheme

On 19 August 2015, the Company granted share options to
95 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
12,200,000 share options were granted to six Directors.

On 29 December 2016, the Company granted share options
to 95 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
11,750,000 share options were granted to six Directors.

Details of the movements of the options granted under the
Scheme are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
the Directors, chief executive, substantial shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any right to subscribe for the shares of the
Company under the Scheme.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company or their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were (i) required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Director
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange:

Interests in shares of the Company:

Number of shares/

EERERTHRAEBREKND - HEARSG R
BEzEERKXE

R-TB—tF+-_A=1t—H R TIXAHE
EFHN $E5E,4%%I\KA RIZEEFEHETBITHRABRM
LB ARARAREEMEREE (EE

REZMPEGRD (15875 RPEHR]) EXV
B0 Z Bty ~ B R &5 A E )R

BEESFNHEERIIEXVEET R85 /A%ﬂ =
RATR LR ERIORE (BIERIEE
NEAE RO B BIG X EES R IERA 2
Al Kok BE) « (iR IREF KB IEHIE
3521%2,\%6)\3%'7&@'”5)?? 2B ek

KA EJZ@n)*E%FJ:m%E BTS2 10PT &L F 3
ﬁaif R G2 FAESFRIZEME AN R BT
ZHEmIOKE

RAEQTRD 2 Em

Approximate %
of the number

Name of director Capacity underlying shares held Total of issued shares
ST HEBITRG
BEEpR -gvi) HEROBA Ay  HEABLEIH
Shares Options
EER BRE
(Note 1)
(Htat1)
Mr. Liu Stefan Beneficial owner 9,520,000 16,300,000 25,820,000 1.27%
(Chief Executive Officer)
Bk K (TTECAE ) ERBEBA
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Note 2) Interest in controlled 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 14.75%
corporation
HEEE (Hit2) REEHEE R R
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.10%
Stephen Gregory McCoy%t 4 BEmEAA
Ms. Zhao Guixin Beneficial owner 200,000 600,000 800,000 0.04%

BHEEZL ERBEEA
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Approximate %

Number of shares/ of the number
Name of director Capacity underlying shares held Total of issued shares
PR,/ HEBRTRS
BEEpA ogvi) HEROHA Ay HEABYEIH
Shares Options
EER BRE
(Note 1)
(Hiit1)
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Beneficial owner - 600,000 600,000 0.03%
Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 BEmEAA
Mr. Lin Wenhui Beneficial owner 200,000 600,000 800,000 0.04%
MRS & EnEAA
Notes: Hiat -

1. Those options were granted on 19 August 2015 and 29 December
2016 respectively under the Company’s share option scheme.

2. Mr. Li Zhi Da, a non-executive Director of the Company, is interested
in 300,000,000 shares through his holdings in person in KVB Kunlun
Holdings Limited (“KVB Holdings”). As Mr. Li Zhi Da is entitled to
control over one-third of the voting power at general meetings of KVB
Holdings, he is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the entire
300,000,000 shares held by KVB Holdings.

1.

2.

ZEBRESFR - FE—AFNA+NAR=
E—NF+ A=+ AREARLN G ERE
GrEIFRH -

ARG HANTEFETERESFEBBEN
A RKVB Kunlun Holdings Limited ([ KVB
Holdings 1) A9 % # 1K300,000,0008% f% 17
BEED BARFEELLEGEFFKYB
Holdingsl ®RA & F#Ei8 =52 —mKE
1 IRIFEEREENEA - #7518 B RKVB
Holdings = #(#% 4 #7300,000,0004% §& (7 1 B
B o
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

FERRRRS - MERGORES 2#ES
MRA

BARFREFHREIBITRAEBMM R_=
—tF+_A=t+t—H UATAL(EFRAZ
EEFHNTBTHRABRIN RARXB RN K
MRRARX (0 o A SRR R EAF R A AIRIERE
M EARDI EXVER 2837 8 Z R X A1 AR
RAPWEHRCHENRA R FIRERE 5 LB G
FIBGRATBFNERMESAEMTT A MER
RAE SRR FTEREm SORR -

Number of shares/
underlying shares held
ke HERAEE
Approximate%
Name of substantial Derivative of the number
shareholder Capacity Shares interests Total of issued shares
HERT
R4 &
ITERRER g% g TEER “mg BATAL
CITIC Securities Company Limited Interests in controlled 1,200,310,001 - 1,200,310,001 59.03%
(“CITIC Securities”) corporation (Note 1)
REIHROERAR(HRELESR])  RIEHEE 2 &R (H71)
CITIC Securities Overseas Investment Beneficial owner 1,200,310,001 - 1,200,310,001 59.03%
Company Limited
FETEHEMEBRAF EGBEEA
KVB Holdings (Note 2) Beneficial owner 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 14.75%
KVB Holdings (#:22) EGEBA
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Note 2) Interests in controlled 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 14.75%
corporation
FERE ML) REEHEE 2 Ex
Calypso (International) Investment Beneficial owner 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%

Co., Limited (Note 3)
Calypso (International) Investment
Co., Limited (#7523)

it

A A

\
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Number of shares/
underlying shares held
FiERe, RERGEE
Approximate%
Name of substantial Derivative of the number
shareholder Capacity Shares interests Total of issued shares
HERT
REO#E
TERREH &4 R4 fTEER wy BRESL
HNA Group (International) Company Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Limited (Note 3) corporation
BfEE (BR) BRAR (#:23) REEGEE 2w
HNA Group Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
corporation
BMEBBRAR (Hi23) REEHEE 2 a3
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co., Ltd. (Note 3) corporation
BEAREERERRAR (Mi23) IR EHEE 2 5
Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co. Ltd. (Note 3) corporation
REER(HR)BRAR (H:23) REEGEE 2 #Ew
Hainan Province Cihang Foundation Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
(Note 3) corporation
BREEMARESS (W) REEHEE 2 #3
Notes: Hiat -

1. As CITIC Securities is entitled to control over one-third of the voting 1. IR IFHE 5 B R P AZHE 5 G908 & H IR

power at general meetings of CITIC Securities Overseas Investment
Company Limited, CITIC Securities is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the entire 1,200,310,001 shares held by CITIC Securities

Overseas Investment Company Limited.

RAIZREAX G LGB =572 — A8
o IRIEESEREIRG - P EAE5EER
RAEIAELFEFINIREBR Dl H A5
1,200,310,00188 & 17 0 HEH 1 7 ©
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2. As Mr. Li Zhi Da, a non-executive Director of the Company, is entitled
to control over one-third of the voting power at general meetings of
KVB Holdings, he is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the
entire 300,000,000 shares held by KVB Holdings.

3. As confirmed by Calypso International Investment Co., Limited, as
at 31 December 2017, Calypso International Investment Co., Limited
was a wholly owned subsidiary of HNA Group (International) Company
Limited (441 % B (EIE) B IR 22 &]) (formerly known as HNA Group
International Headquarter (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (54 £ B E0 5% 48
B8 (&%) B R 2> 7])), which was in turn owned as to 91.09% by HNA
Group Co., Ltd. (BATEE AR 2 7). HNA Group Co., Ltd. was held as
to 30% by Yangpu Jianyun Investment Co., Ltd. (£5ZER EE R
7]) and 70% by Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. (#/%
EHER AR 22 A]). Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. was
in turn held as to 50% by Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd.
(B F % & (C£%) B IR 2> &]). Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Co.,
Ltd. was held as to 65% by Hainan Province Cihang Foundation (&
HEEM A sES E). Shengtang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd.
was held as to 35% by Tang Dynasty Development Co. Ltd. (8/&
% E H R 2 7]) which was in turn 98% held by Pan-American Aviation
Holding Company, which is wholly held by Hainan Cihang Charity
Foundation, Inc..

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors
are not aware of any other person who has an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares (including interest in
options, if any) of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contract of significance in relation to the Group'’s
business to which any member of the Group was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31
December 2017.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contract of significance (including provision of
services) between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during
the year ended 31 December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are disclosed in Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these
transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, as identified below.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Sharing of Office premises

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2015 (the “Announcement”), the Company and KVB
Holdings entered into an renewed office licence agreement (the
“Renewed Office Licence Agreement”) on 18 December 2015 for
a term from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. The annual
caps for the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Office
Licence Agreement for the years ending 31 December 2016, 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 are HK$4 million, HK$4.5
million and HK$5 million, respectively.

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated
1 December 2017, the Company and KVB Holdings entered
into a supplemental agreement to the Renewed Office Licence
Agreement on 1 December 2017 to revise certain terms of the
Renewed Office Licence Agreement and the revised annual
caps for the services provided by the Company. For the services
provided by the Company for each of the three years ending 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018, the
revised annual caps are HK$4 million, HK$3.7 million and HK$1.9
million. For the services provided by KVB Holdings for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018, the revised annuals cap are nil, HK$0.8 million and
HK$3.1 million respectively.
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Cash Dealing Services

As disclosed in the announcement dated 18 December 2015, KVB
Kunlun New Zealand Limited (“KVB New Zealand”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and several subsidiaries
(other than the Group) of KVB Holdings entered into a cash dealing
agreement (the “Cash Dealing Agreement”) on 18 December
2015 for a term from 1 January 2016 to 30 June 2016, under which
KVB New Zealand shall provide cash dealing services including
the provision of the exchange of currencies and in particular the
provision of currency exchange at a rate determined at the time of
the transaction. The cap for transactions under the Cash Dealing
Agreement for the six months ending 30 June 2016 is revenue (net
of realised gains, realised losses, unrealised gains and unrealised
losses) of HK$9.9 million.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 17 June 2016, the
Company and KVB Kunlun Global Capital Limited (“KVB GC”"),
a company incorporated in BVI and is wholly owned by KVB
Holdings, entered into a renewed Cash Dealing Agreement on
17 June 2016 for a term from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2018.
Pursuant to the renewed Cash Dealing Agreement, the Company
shall provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide, to KVB GC and
its subsidiaries (“GC Group”) the cash dealing services including
the provision of the exchange of currencies (“KVB Services”) by
the Group; and KVB GC shall provide, or procure its subsidiaries to
provide, to the Group, foreign exchange conversion and settlement
services (“GC Services”). The maximum revenue (net of realized/
unrealized gain/loss) to be recorded by the Company in respect
of the KVB Services for the six months ending 31 December 2016
and two years ending 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018
are HK$7.1 million, HK$20 million and HK$20 million respectively.
The maximum consideration to be paid by the Company in respect
of the provision of the GC Services for the six months ended 31
December 2016 is HK$3.0 million.
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Information Technology Services
Software Licence

As disclosed in the announcement dated 18 December 2015, a
software licence agreement (the “Software Licence Agreement”)
was entered into between the Company and Banclogix System Co.,
Limited (“Banclogix”) on 18 December 2015, pursuant to which
Banclogix shall grant the Company a three-year licence for certain
software to enable the Group to, inter alia, use the routing service
and data integration layer developed by Banclogix. The licence
fee payable under the Software Licence Agreement is a one-off
payment of HK$3.5 million.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 19 April 2016, the
Company and Banclogix entered into a New Information
Technology Services Agreement for a term from 19 April 2016 to
31 December 2018. Pursuant to the New Information Technology
Services Agreement, Banclogix will from time to time provide
software development and maintenance services, information
technology infrastructure project management services and
information technology infrastructure maintenance services to
the Group. The aggregate annual caps payable by the Group to
Banclogix under the Software Licence Agreement and the New
Information Technology Services Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018 are HK$20 million, HK$19 million and HK$20
million, respectively.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 26 September 2016, the
independent shareholders approved the supplemental agreement
dated 12 August 2016 to revise the existing aggregate annual caps
under the Software Licence Agreement and the New Information
Technology Services Agreement. The revised aggregate annual
caps payable by the Group to Banclogix for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018 are HK$28.5 million, HK$26.0 million and HK$24.5 million,
respectively.
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All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions have
been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditors

must provide a letter to the Board confirming whether anything

has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the

continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve the

provision of goods or services by the Group;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the cap.
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The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 January 2018, the Company entered into subscription
agreements with BC Global Fund SPC - BC Fintech Fund and PA
Investment Funds SPC for the account of PA High Technology
Fund SP, to issue 7.5% convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$200 million (the “Bonds”). The Bonds are convertible
up to 326,264,273 conversion shares (which are fully-paid ordinary
shares upon issue) which will be issuable by the Company upon
the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the Bonds in full at
the conversion price of HK$0.613 per conversion share, subject to
adjustment.

The issue of the Bonds and the right of conversion into shares of
the Company attached to the Bonds were approved and authorised
by the shareholders of the Company under general mandate at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 10 May 2017.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Bonds is approximately
HK$199.28 million. The Company currently intends to use the
estimated net proceeds for investment in financial assets and
working capital purposes.

Details of the subscription of the Bonds were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 25 January 2018 and dated
12 February 2018 respectively.
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Save as disclose as above, there were no major subsequent events
since the end of the reporting year and up to the date of this annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,313,000 (2016: approximately
HK$195,000).

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Stefan

Chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 16 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
REREREBARAE

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of KVB Kunlun Financial
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 62 to 155, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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The key audit matter identified in our audit was the leveraged
trading system and controls.

Key Audit Matter
Leveraged trading system and controls

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income is a key
revenue stream for the Group, which contributed to over 70% of the
Group’s total income.

The Group’s leveraged foreign exchange and other trading
business and the recognition and calculation of the leveraged
foreign exchange and other trading income are dependent on the
design and operational effectiveness of key Information Technology
(“IT”) controls over the trading system given the significant amount
of transactions that are automatically processed in the systems.
Therefore, controls over the trading system are a key focus in our
audit.

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We identified, evaluated and tested the following key IT controls of
the Group’s leveraged trading system:

1. IT General Controls Testing

Assessed IT control environment including examining the
framework of governance over the Group’s IT organisation and
the key IT general controls over the trading system covering
access to system and data, program changes, program
development, and IT operations.

2. IT Application Controls Testing

Assessed key automated control procedures, key system
generated reports from the trading system and calculations
within the automated applications through comparing the
source data to the underlying trade details and performing
recalculation on a sample basis.

The results of the audit testing performed supported our ability to
place reliance on the IT dependencies of the leveraged trading
system.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors’ Report, Corporate Information, Statement
from the Chief Executive Officer, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Biographies of Directors and Senior Management,
Corporate Governance Report and Financial Summary (but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and
take appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is FU, Ho Kee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

62

A B4 T B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FHET F&T
Leveraged foreign exchange and B HNE 2 H At 22 5 U A
other trading income 5 397,025 306,036
Cash dealing income Be RS A 5 1,136 4,251
Fee and commission income Eﬁﬁ LA PN 108,775 55,356
Other income/(losses) HAag A (E8) 6 7,996 (3,036)
Total income WA 4B %58 514,932 362,607
Referral expenses and other charges  #E0FSZ K H & B 299,247 160,407
Staff costs BT KA 7 56,931 60,105
Depreciation and amortisation T NN 12&13 12,521 8,146
Lease payments under land and + 3 R FEEE R
buildings 13,395 12,548
Administrative and other operating T R H A & =
expenses 8 96,404 65,992
Total expenses i Sz 48 RA 478,498 307,198
Operating profit Syl 36,434 55,409
Finance cost B & B AN (1,415) (1,166)
Profit before tax 5 26 Bl A 35,019 54,243
Income tax expense TS i g (7,665) (15,555)
Profit for the year F % 7 27,354 38,688
Other comprehensive income Hbh 2 MW=
Item that may be reclassified to profit or A]EE 1B E 875,218 H
loss
Currency translation difference EESE 5 =58 3,858 2,028
Other comprehensive income for FEH Mt 2 il
the year, net of tax (FOBRFLIH) 3,858 2,028
Total comprehensive income for the year £ JE E {tb 2 [ 428 31,212 40,716
Earnings per share for profit attributable 4 E AN A R IEHERFE A
to the equity holders of the Company  J&1h % Kl 2 &A% & 7
for the year
— Basic and diluted — ERREE
(HK cents per share) (ZREAN) 11 1.35 1.90
The notes on pages 68 to 155 form part of these consolidated  5568F 1558 WM TR 2 Z x4 M I8 h= 1Y

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AR EER AR

As at 31 December 2017
RZE—+tF+=A=+—8H

2017 2016
—E—t5F —ET—REF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt T8 FET
ASSETS =3
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - R R 12 9,719 10,400
Intangible assets mILEE 13 34,496 27,447
Deferred tax assets IRIEFRIE & E 19 1,367 1,876
45,582 39,723
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments H b fE W SRIE
and deposits TER FRIE iR & 14 11,824 10,875
Tax prepayment TR IR 11,211 6,224
Derivative financial instruments TESRT A 15 139,567 77,377
Balances due from agents B AR 3R 4 24 16 88,551 57,556
Cash and bank balances and Re MIRTTERIA KR
client trust bank balances EEEEIRITE SR 17 1,104,050 890,403
Total current assets hEEEHAE 1,355,203 1,042,435
Total assets EEH#E 1,400,785 1,082,158
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzkEE
Share capital R 2R 23 20,333 20,332
Reserves B 365,190 360,282
Retained earnings RE BT 161,704 133,903
Total equity AR 547,227 514,517
The notes on pages 68 to 155 form part of these consolidated 5568ZE 1558 MM ST A ZZ 454 B HRER

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

O EERAMER

As at 31 December 2017
RZE—+tF+=RA=+—8

2017 2016
ZE—tF T KRF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt F#ET T35
Current liabilities nREEE
Finance lease obligations 7 & TH E AR 18 47 18
Current income tax liabilities ENEARRISFi B & - 2,201
Other payables and accrued liabilities HinE N sRIB R ETBE 20 53,272 31,785
Borrowing EE 21 - 55,835
Derivative financial instruments TTESmITE 15 30,646 3,047
Clients’ balances B &R 22 766,182 473,904
850,147 566,790
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Finance lease obligations B & TH AR 18 205 =
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERIE B E 19 3,206 851
3,411 851
Total liabilities BEHEE 853,558 567,641
Total equity and liabilities HREERAEE 1,400,785 1,082,158
The financial statements on pages 62 to 155 were approved by the FEe2FE155B M B REZED RN = — /\E=H
Board of Directors on 16 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf — 47<x B &= = & #t # L 155 %lj%é
Liu Stefan Stephen Gregory McCOY
v Stephen Gregory McCOY
The notes on pages 68 to 155 form part of these consolidated 5568ZE= 1558 MM IR ZE 454 M5 HRER

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A N

AR EE R
For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

Share  Currency

Share Share Capital option translation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings equity
BRE g%

Bx  BteE EXRE R EiRt RERN RR4B
Note  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Wit TR Tén  TEx TER TEn  TEx TER

(Note 24)
(Hiito4)
At 1 January 2016 R=E-r~E—f—H 20,330 180,276 171,892 9,551 (11,794) 95,155 465,410
Comprehensive income 2EYE
Profit for the year EEEA - - - - - 38,688 38,688
Other comprehensive income FREMPARE
for the year - - - - 2,028 - 2,028
20,330 180,276 171,892 9,551 (9,766) 133,843 506,126
Share option scheme EiREsE 2% - - - 8,201 - - 8,201
Issuance of new ordinary shares 17 i £ I £ 5 % 47 2
upon exercise of share option ~ #TE &M 2 188 = (60) = 60 190

Balance at 31 December 2016 R=ZB-X5+=R

=t-Hz#e 20332 180464 171892 17,692 (9,766) 133903 514517
At 1 January 2017 R-E—tF—F—-H 20,332 180,464 171,892 17,692 (9,766) 133,903 514,517
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - 27,354 27,354
Other comprehensive income FREMPARE
for the year - - - - 3,858 - 3,858

20,332 180,464 171,892 17,692 (5,908) 161,257 545,729

Share option scheme BiRET 2 26 - - - 1,082 - 436 1,468
Issuance of new ordinary shares 17 i IR B % 17 2
upon exercise of share option ~~ #TE &M 1 29 - (11) - 11 30

Balance at 31 December 2017 R=ZB-t&+ZR
St-Az&H 20,333 180,493 171,892 18,713 (5,908) 161,704 547,227

The notes on pages 68 to 155 form part of these consolidated $F68F155E MM TR 2 E iR A M IBIREHN
financial statements. — &5 o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

66

maBlamaR
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE_T—+tF+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaE FHET F&T
Cash flows from operating activities K& ZEFESRERE
Profit before tax B %5 BT £ 35,019 54,243
Adjustments for: THE
Depreciation and amortisation 88 Ko 85 12&13 12,521 8,146
Interest income B A 6 (2,661) (1,877)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEEEEEMNEER
fixed assets (Yrz) 6 438 (36)
Impairment kB 8 1,730 -
Share option expenses FE AR 2 7 1,468 8,201
Cash flows from operating activities EEESEERILETE
before working capital changes FMEREeRE 48,515 68,677
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BRFEBHFZTRL
time deposits (2 h0) 72,905 (64,906)
Increase in client trust bank balances R {SFEIRITAS R IE I (173,732) (103,570)
Increase in balances due from agents  FEUR IR 45 gR 12 A0 (30,995) (15,697)
(Increase)/decrease in derivative PTESR T A (g R
financial instruments (34,591) 147,115
Increase in other receivables, H4th fE W FRIE -
prepayments and deposits TES FRIE K 2 & 18 0 (1,279) (3,293)
Decrease in amounts due to other JE 11 L th 2 B 75 5K TRk >
related parties - (73)
Increase/(decrease) in clients’ balances B FE & &832h01, Cfi4) 292,278 (54,155)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables — EAth Bt ZkIE K Bt & (&
and accrued liabilities #=oan, Crid) 21,487 (25,578)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &< 715, (FTF) IR & 194,588 (51,480)
Income tax paid EXSIIEG (11,718) (33,165)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RESEBNFTS, (FTA)
operating activities R e FRE 182,870 (84,645)
The notes on pages 68 to 155 form part of these consolidated 5568ZE 1558 MM ST A ZZ 454 B HRER

financial statements.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED &

—H 5

I % < AR A PR A

o



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mallaemig

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-_ZT—+tF+-A=1+—HIEFE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FHET T
Cash flows from investing activities & FEFFIBHRERE
Interest received B YT 2 2,991 1,359
Purchase of property, plant and EE #’/7)% 7 Mo 5% K
equipment and intangible assets BmILEE 12&13 (19,684) (28,843)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets $HE E B E S A 25 100
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEMARSFRE (16,668) (27,384)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZHAERESARE
Net proceeds from issue of shares R% (0 B 1T FT 1S 3 IRV E 58 30 190
Repayment of finance lease EE R A ERIE
obligations 25 (41) (44)
(Repayment of)/proceeds from borrowing ~ (BEEE) £ E&
FT1S 518 21825 (55,835) 55,835
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEES (FTA) g
financing activities IR® FEE (55,846) 55,981
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeRESEEY
and cash equivalents #in, GRd) B 110,356 (56,048)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYReRRSEEY
beginning of year 318,916 373,014
Effect of foreign exchange rate bE X & &) 2 855
changes, net 2,464 1,950
Cash and cash equivalents at FEREESRBELEEY
end of year 17 431,736 318,916
The notes on pages 68 to 155 form part of these consolidated £68& 1558 MM B ZSirE MISHEN
financial statements. —Hb5
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —ZF—-LAF4FEHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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fok B B 25 i A I R

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 9 November 2010 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s immediate parent is CITIC
Securities Overseas Investment Company Limited (the
“CITIC Securities Overseas”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding company is CITIC
Securities Company Limited (the “CITIC Securities”), a
company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.
The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The Company is an investment holding
company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the provision of leveraged foreign exchange and other
trading, cash dealing business, and other services.

As at 31 December 2017, 59.03% of the total issued
shares of the Company are held by CITIC Securities
Overseas, 14.75% of issued shares are held by KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited and the remaining 26.22% of
issued shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

On 2 June 2016, Zhuhai Henggin Kunlun Financial
Exchange Limited (“KVB ZHHQ"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a membership
agreement with Tianjin Precious Metals Exchange
Limited (“TPME”), whereby TPME will provide KVB ZHHQ
a spot trading and settlement platform for precious
metals trading and the relevant consulting, training and
management services to KVB ZHHQ. TPME is controlled
by CITIC Limited, an entity incorporated in Hong Kong
which has significant influence over CITIC Securities
Overseas.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
1.2 Significant event

On 2 June 2017, the Group received a notice from
TPME that it will adjust its precious metals spot trading
business with a view to reduce the trading risks, and it will
suspend the opening of new trading positions for all spot
commodities traded on the exchange with effect from 12
June 2017 (the “Suspension”). The closing of existing
trading positions will not be affected.

As a result of the Suspension, other than the closing
of existing positions, the Group will no longer be able
to generate revenue from the spot trading business in
precious metals on the TPME after 12 June 2017. The
Group has not been informed when or if the Suspension
will be lifted as at the reporting date.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss, which carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

(b)

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2017:

e Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses — Amendments to HKAS 12,
and

o Disclosure initiative — amendments to HKAS 7.

The adoption of these amendments did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods.
Most of the amendments will also not affect the
current or future periods. The amendments to HKAS
7 require disclosure of changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, see Note 25.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2017 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group.
None of these is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, except the following set out below:

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ addresses the
classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

The Group does not expect the new guidance to

have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fok B B 25 A I R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EESTHHEBE(E)

21 REEE(E)
(b) HARIRABIFTERIR 2 FE ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from
HKAS 39 and have not been changed.

The new hedge accounting rules will align the
accounting for hedging instruments more closely
with the Group’s risk management practices. As
a general rule, more hedge relationships might
be eligible for hedge accounting, as the standard
introduces a more principles-based approach.

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses rather than only incurred credit losses as is
the case under HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. Based on the
assessments undertaken to date, the Group does
not expect a material change in respect of the
impairment loss allowance for the Group’s financial
assets.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of the
adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The
group will apply the new rules retrospectively from
1 January 2018, with the practical expedients
permitted under the standard. Comparatives for
2017 will not be restated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (continued)

HKFRS 15, 'Revenue from contracts with customers',
the HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts. The
new standard is based on the principle that revenue
is recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer. The standard permits either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

Based on the assessments undertaken to date, the
Group does not expect a significant financial impact
arising from the change in revenue recognition
policy adopted by the Group.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The
Group will apply the standard using the modified
retrospective approach and comparatives will not be
restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (continued)

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’, will result in almost all leases
being recognised on the balance sheet, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a financial liability
to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting
for lessors will not significantly change. The standard
will affect primarily the accounting for Group’s
operating leases. At 31 December 2017, the Group
had non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of HK$19.2 million, see Note 31.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and
that would be expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

221

222

Consolidation (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity.
The Group has determined the executive directors and
senior management as its chief operating decision maker.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented

in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(iy assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated
statements of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:
Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter

Computer equipment 3to 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3to 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 3to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. Assets that are subject to depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are amortised over the useful economic life (3 to 5
years) and assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful lives of intangible assets
with indefinite lives are reviewed annually to determine
whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each balance sheet date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following categories: financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss and loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if it holds
the asset primarily for the purpose of trading
and expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

EESTHHEREE (&)

2.8 EREEE)
282 BERRTE

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are included directly in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and are reported as
“leveraged foreign exchange and other trading
income” in the period in which they arise. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or where the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less impairment
if any. The Group’s receivables (including amounts
due from group companies) and “cash and cash
equivalents” fall under this category. Accounts
receivables and amounts due from group
companies are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest
on loans is included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income and is reported as net
interest income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

2.8.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

2.9 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset classified
as loans and receivables is impaired. A financial asset is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZE2i:HBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)

29 EWMEERME (&)

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair
value using observable market data.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of previously recognised
impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

The Group classifies derivatives as financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at
inception. These financial assets and financial liabilities
are classified as held for trading by the Board of
Directors.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading are
those acquired or incurred principally for the purposes
of selling or repurchasing in the short term. The Group
does not classify any derivatives as hedges in a hedging
relationship.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value are recognised in the
“leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income”
in the period in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, bank deposits with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash
equivalents available for the disposition of the Group and
exclude client trust bank balances, and bank deposits
held to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group.

2.12 Rental, utility and other deposits

Rental, utility and other deposits held on a long term basis
are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less impairment if any.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESEEZeiHEFEME(£)
POLICIES (continued)
2.13 Borrowing 2136 E

Borrowing is recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowing is subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of
the borrowing using the effective interest method.

Borrowing is classified as current liabilities unless the
liabilities are due to be settled or the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.14 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other payables are
recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs
incurred. Financial liabilities are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised
in the profit or loss over the period of the other financial
liabilities using the effective interest method. Financial
liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
—that is, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

2.15 Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Provision (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.16 Employee benefits
(a) Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary,
which operates in New Zealand, are eligible to
participate in KiwiSaver plan on a voluntary basis.
This subsidiary is required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the fund only if
employees are making contribution to KiwiSaver
plan. The contributions are charged to the profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the fund.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary, which
operates in Australia, are required to participate
in employee superannuation fund. This subsidiary
is required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the fund. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Retirement benefits scheme (continued)

The assets of the Scheme and other plans as
described above are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the Scheme
and other plans.

Employee level entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they are accrued to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the balance sheet date.

Bonus

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, in which the bonus scheme is at the
discretion of the Group’s Directors based on the
Group performance that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Group after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Share-based payment transactions

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined with reference to the fair value
estimated by external valuer under a valuation model
commonly used in the market.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account
is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the year in which the service conditions are
fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the
“vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting year has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income
statement for a year represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that year.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EZEiHEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)

217U R XNAR S (B)
(a) BERZERGZNXE (#E)

2.17 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

(continued)

When the options are exercised, the company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly transaction costs are credited to share
capital.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification,
which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Share-based payment transactions (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transaction among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recongised over the vesting periods an
increase to investment in subsidiaries undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised as a liability
in the consolidated financial statements in the period
in which it is approved by the shareholders or directors
where appropriate.

2.19 Income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit of loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Group’s subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates position taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.20 Goods and Services Tax (“GST”)

The financial statements have been prepared so that

expenses/costs are stated inclusive of GST, where

appropriate. The Group is not a registered person in term

of the Goods and Services Tax Act 1985 in New Zealand.

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

fees and commission income, when the services
have been rendered;

management fees income, when the services have
been rendered; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ESEEZeiHEFEME(£)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Cash dealing income 222BERF WA

Unleveraged cash dealing services are provided to
corporate clients, in particular, those clients engaged in
money changing business for the purpose of hedging
their cash positions and meeting settlement obligations.
The Group is rewarded by the spread between the price
quoted to our clients and the price offered by our market
makers. Cash dealing income is recognised when cash
dealing transactions have been completed by market
makers with reference to prevailing exchange rate.

2.23 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor), are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalized at the lease’s inception at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in finance lease obligation. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in non-current
liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and sound
risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and successful
financial practice. The Group acknowledges that a balance
must be achieved between risks, control and business growth.
The principal financial risks inherent in the Group’s business
are credit risk, market risk (including interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk) and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management objective is to enhance shareholder value while
retaining exposure within acceptable thresholds in response to
changes in markets. The Group has a robust risk management
system in place to identify, analyse, assess and manage risks.

The Group’s risk management is carried out by the Group
Risk Department under policies approved by the Group audit,
risk and compliance committee. The Group Risk Department
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well
as written policies covering specific areas, such as mitigating
credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, capital management risk
and risk limits setting and monitoring.

The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised
below:

3.1 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
bank balances, balances due from agents, derivative
financial instruments and other receivables and deposits.
After evaluating the client’s risk profiles, the Group sets
stop-out levels to the clients. Once their equity drops
to the stop-out level the Group’s trading system will
automatically liquidate the client’s positions. Without
taking into account any collateral held or other credit
enhancements, the maximum exposure to credit risk is
the carrying amounts of these assets. The balances due
from agents have no defaults in the past.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s bank deposits are held with banks and
balances due from agents are held with major financial
institutions and TPME. Management reviews the banks
and financial institutions’ creditworthiness on a regular
basis. The banks and financial institutions are of high
credit quality and substantially with a rating of grade A
or with long established relationships. The Group is also
subject to credit risk relating to balance due from TMPE,
a recognised investment exchange under the Tianjin
Municipal People's Government and a related party
of the Group. The credit risk relating to the balance is
treated as any other receivables in the normal course of
business. The Group monitors the credit risk exposure
of the balance on a regular basis, taking into account
the financial position and past experience. The Group
did not experience any losses from non-performance by
the counterparty. The credit risk associated with these
balances is deemed insignificant.

(a) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral
held or other credit enhancements

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event the counterparties fail to perform
their obligations as at the balance sheet date, in
relation to each class of financial assets, is the
carrying amount of those assets as indicated in
the consolidated balance sheet. These amounts
represent the worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure to the Group at 31 December 2017 and
2016, without taking into account any collateral held
or other credit enhancements attached.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Credit risk (continued)

(a) (Continued)

The carrying values of receivables and other assets

arising from the course of business of the Group are

as follows:

iR REE (&)
3.1 &Rk E)

(a) (&)

RALBE R BEFELENRK
REREMEERTENT

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FATT

Other receivables and deposits ~ HEAth fE I X IE M iz & 5,863 6,913

Derivative financial instruments PTTESRT A 139,567 77,377

Balances due from agents FE WA IR 45 24 88,551 57,556
Cash and bank balances and Be RIRITHERIAR

client trust bank balances BEEEIRITER 1,104,050 890,403

1,338,031 1,032,249

(b) None of the financial assets is either past due or

impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Credit risk (continued)

(c) The following table breaks down the Group’s
major credit exposure at their carrying amounts,
as categorised by geographical region as of 31
December 2017 and 2016. The Group has allocated
exposures to regions based on the country of
domicile of its counterparties. Credit risk exposure
by geographical sectors is classified according
to the location of counterparties after taking into
account the transfer of risk.

As at 31 December 2017

fok B B 25 A I R

3 HM¥EREE (&)
3.1 &Rk E)

(c) TRUFRHEEASARENETE

SERE  WIREE—T—tF
F—ZFE—RF+_A=+—HHK
Hh IR (R 15 0 58 o AN [BAR IR H
FHRIFTIEBR S AL R b 2= 5
& - ZEiE 5 EERBAR

R e @\ f 18 R F 5 PR T

PAS#8 o

R=-=Z2—tHF+=-HA=+—H

Asia

Pacific Europe

excluding and other
Hong Kong  Hong Kong regions Total

TABE Bl K
&8 (TEEEH) Hitih & @it
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THT TR TET THT
Other receivables and deposits Hih N IE R RS 4,019 1,844 - 5,363
Derivative financial instruments fTEeRmIA 21 139,546 - 139,567
Balances due from agents B E - 88,551 - 88,551

Cash and bank balances and Be RETHEBIAR

client trust bank balances EPEFERITER 185,392 740,047 178,611 1,104,050
Total sBat 189,432 969,988 178,611 1,338,031
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 - &F—-LAF4E#H
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Credit risk (continued)
(c) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016

(continued)

3 HM¥EAKREE (&)
3.1 &Rk E)
(c) (&)

R_F—ARF+_H=+—8H

Asia

Pacific Europe

excluding and other
Hong Kong Hong Kong regions Total

DAHER BUM &
EE (TBREH) Hipie @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT TET THT
Other receivables and deposits EEWFIA NS 3,601 3,312 - 6,913
Derivative financial instruments fTESBTAE 157 77,220 - 77,377
Balances due from agents AR E L% - 57,556 - 57,556

Cash and bank balances and Be RRTHEBIAR

client trust bank balances RPERRTER 326,219 494,505 69,679 890,403
Total @5t 329,977 632,593 69,679 1,032,249

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED [ /5|

e AR A R A R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HEREMER (&)
3.2 Market risk 32 mEZEKE
3.2.1Interest rate risk 3.2.1 FFE 7 B
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as the HRAEEGERBESIKE
Group invests all surplus funds in accounts with REERTHFHINERERIIXE
reputable counterparties and is susceptible to HERFERBNTE - WAK
movements in call interest rates. Interest rate risk EmEmE MR - FERERIRE
arises from unexpected changes in interest rates FIREZINEE) - s EEE A
that may result in an adverse impact on the Group’s S B IR R ML BRI E L TF
current and near future performance. The Group has B o K £= [ ok A B {a] K1) 2=
not used any interest rate swaps nor forward interest 2 B gl iR BRI 3R & 49 ¥ EH FI ==
rate contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate [E B o
risk.
As at 31 December 2017 R=-Z2—tHF+=A=+—H
Floating Fixed Non-
interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FEAE B EFI= %E Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THT TR TET THT
Assets &E
Other receivables and deposits Hibh W IERiEe - - 5,863 5,363
Derivative financial instruments TESBTA - - 139,567 139,567
Balances due from agents PR IR e 3,331 - 85,220 88,551
Cash and bank balances and Be RRTHEBIAR
client trust bank balances EPERRITHER 1,021,105 80,883 2,062 1,104,050
Liabilities aff
Finance lease obligation RATERE - 252 - 252
Other payables H i e 1508 - - 41,452 41,452
Derivative financial instruments fTESBTHE - - 30,646 30,646
Clients’ balances ZE L - - 766,182 766,182

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 - &F—-LAF4E#H 99



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

100

fok B B 25 i A I R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HXEKRER (&)
3.2 Market risk (continued) 3.2 MR (&)
3.2.1Interest rate risk (continued) 321 FIEEEE (&)
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZZE—RF+_HA=+—H
Floating Fixed Non-
interest interest interest
rate rate bearing Total
FENH & TE % ®E @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET AT FTAET FTAT
Assets BE
Other receivables and deposits HuEWRIERZS - - 6,913 6,913
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA = = 77,377 77,377
Balances due from agents [ 32 45 3,372 = 54,184 57,556
Cash and bank balances and ReERBIEHAR
client trust bank balances RPERHRITAER 726,799 158,233 5,371 890,403
Liabilities g
Finance lease obligation BMERERE = 18 - 18
Other payables Hi B E - = 21,954 21,954
Derivative financial instruments TESRIE - - 3,047 3,047
Borrowing BE = 55,835 = 55,835
Clients’ balances KPS = - 473,904 473,904

Based on the simulations performed and with other
variables held constant, should the interest rate
increase/decrease by 1%, the profit after taxation for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$10,244,000 (2016:
HK$7,302,000) and the equity would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$10,244,000 (2016:
HK$7,302,000).

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED [ iy [ [ 4 il 42 [ 5 B )

AR 1% A5 468 3R 3R M B b Al B =&
RETEHE - MAIXRIER, T
B1% Al E—_T—tF+=
A=+t HILFENBRB %R
F 45 38 h0 Rk 4> £910,244,000
Bt (ZZF — /<4 : 7,302,000
SIT) MEEE A MR A B
10,244,000/ 7L (=& — /X 4F -
7,302,000/ 7T) °
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HXEKRER (&)
3.2 Market risk (continued) 3.2 TiEEE (&)
3.2.2Foreign currency risk 322 S PE 7 B

Exchange rate fluctuation is the most significant risk
in leveraged foreign exchange trading. The Group
takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on
its financial position and cash flows. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to New Zealand dollars and Australian dollars.
The Group will suffer a loss if it fails to cover a
client deal at a better exchange rate. The Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure by reviewing
the open position of the Group and client trading
performance. The risk is measured by the use
of sensitivity analysis and cash flow forecasting.
Specific risk limits are set to measure and monitor
foreign exchange risk. Any excessive foreign
exchange risks are passed on to other financial
institutions through execution of trades with those
institutions. The management sets limits on the
level of exposure by currency and in aggregate for
both overnight and intra-day positions, which are
monitored on an intra-day basis.

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency policy to hedge its
currency exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group's foreign operations.

PE R )ZE) THEIR N INER 5 &
BEAMER o AN BB AR
NI & nE HEEE REXEEH
e 2 MmAERR o NEBEFRS A
1R T RORTT A ) S 1@ SNE
[RBR o AR ARBEIZE EER
ETREERS  AIBEZIEK -
AEFEERBEANEBNRTER
BRARE PR SRR EIEINE R
Bz o @R T3 iE I R SURME D AT
RIS REEAE S EHEITA
2 FERRRGITRFTERE
THNE R TR o T EARINE
[B\f B35 A B b & R HE T T
REGEBBEEZLHE - EIREE
FE R R B BB B & 4B 58 p s
ERRRKEREREE - RNE R
BRI T IABSER o

AEEFEE T HINEBRE -
HEEFEREINE L mERE -
AR B B Al I E SNEBGR
AR RSB GINEIEEF
BHEEMINERR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HXEKRER (&)
3.2 Market risk (continued) 3.2 mEAR (&)
3.2.2Foreign currency risk (continued) 322 JMER B (FB)
The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure TR AEFR —_ZE—F+FER
to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at 31 —TE—RFt+-_A=+—HHR®
December 2017 and 2016. Included in the tables are HIINEE B iz o NRAALABITTE
the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts in HK$ RAREES RIIZ R EE 5N
equivalent, categorised by the original currency. BEEIBRE-
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tHF+=-H=+—H
HK$ NZD AUD UsD JPY RMB  Others Total
B @BEERT A E AE AR Hih -y
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$ 000
FEn FHErn THEx TEx TErn TErn TErn TEx
Assets EE
Other receivables and deposits EAtEMF ARz 3,10 130 262 308 - 1453 - 583
Derivative financial instruments #7448 T A - 6976 9009 123578 4 - - 139,567
Balances due from agents MR ERES 198 2,016 213 80,184 789 4610 541 88,551
Cash and bank balancesand 38 REFTEHU K
client trust bank balances EPELRTER 25,165 19416 32427 1,007,690 7,225 10,604 1,523 1,104,050
Liabilities af
Finance lease obligation RERSHE - - 252 - - - - 252
Other payables A A 7,386 9%5 1,148 31,134 2 817 - M5
Derivative financial instruments  $714 4B I A - 1,874 0 28742 - - - 30,646
Clients’ balances EP&H - 21,037 30664 710954 3527 - - 766,182

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

Pras
B
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ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HM¥EREE (&)
3.2 Market risk (continued) 3.2 miBEE (&)
3.2.2Foreign currency risk (continued) 322 JMER B (FB)
As at 31 December 2016 N-_ZE—RNF+-_A=+—H
HK$ N2 AUD  USD Y  RMB Others  Total
BT ARET  Br  Ex HE  ARE  Ht &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$ 000
TAL ThEr TEr Thr TEr TEr ThEr T#En
Assets BE
Other receivables and deposits TR RS 3,052 179 191 555 - 29% - 6913
Derivative financial instruments fTELBIA - 23057 7001 47,189 - 130 - 71317
Balances due from agents R B L 163 1205 2B 7227 1830 46627 481 57556
Cash and bank balances and BE RBTEBUR
client trust bank balances REETRTES 28203 9541 36322 802601 529 8299 168 890,403
Liabilities g
Finance lease obligation RERSHE - - 18 - - - - 18
Other payables H MR 3640 1,332 50 14,761 - 1631 - 21954
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMIA - 167 13 1,351 - 12 - 307
Borrowing B8 - - - - - 5583 - 5583
Clients’ balances Rt - 8333 30288 431815 3468 = - 473904

e
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Market risk (continued)

3.2.2Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table indicates the impact of
management’'s reasonable expectation on the
movement in foreign exchange rate on the Group’s
profit after taxation and on equity as at 31 December
2017 and 2016:

3 BBEMERE (&)
3.2 mEER (&)

322 SME [FE B (42)

TRIREEENSETANY —
E—tFR-_F-XRF+H
=+ — BARKBERRB RG] R
s M SME E FR B E

Movement Movement

in foreign in foreign
currency 2017 currency 2016
Foreign currency risk S0 EE L BR HNERE —B—tF NERE) ZT—RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET THT
AUD BIT +/-6% +/-589 +/-3% +/-379
JPY H +/-5% +/-224 +/-3% +/-109
NZD AREEEE T +/-5% +/-233 +/-10% +/-2,265
RMB AR¥ +/-4% +/-634 +/-6% +/-31

3.3 Liquidity risk

The Group’s operations are subject to various statutory
liquidity requirements as prescribed by the relevant
authorities. The Group has put in place a monitoring
system to ensure that it maintains adequate liquid capital
to fund its business commitments and to comply with the
regulatory requirements. The liquidity risk of the Group is
managed by regularly monitoring current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and current working capital to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group holds sufficient cash and deposits on demand to
repay its liabilities.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  F&. i[5 5% 4 il 4 [ 5 PR A

3.3 MENHEE

AREBENEBERZERABEBRENSE
EEMRBDESEZRMAR - AREEZE
VERRG  BREFTONRBE
ERASBENERAZRHRES &
BITIAMBI - NEEFE BT BT
BRI RTERBE S EZREEE RS
MR - ERAEEERSEHNRS
HEEkBEEESAmEREHRN
EHRBESER - AKRERFARE
MRS MEREREERRE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HXEKRER (&)
3.3 Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 REIMEREE (&)
3.3.1Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 331 BE#BIE HE 75 B KA B
maturities BLhE
The table below presents the cash flows payable TEZ2INAEFN -—_ZFE—+EK
by the Group under financial liabilities by remaining —E—RFT+_A=+—Hi%H%
contractual maturities as at 31 December 2017 and TEHAZHERERAEE N
2016. The amounts disclosed in the table are the ERIRERE - ZRIIHENS
contractual undiscounted cash flows. BEASARMIRE S RE -
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—H
Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
imonth  months  months Years  5years Indefinite Total
-z =z
-BAR =@A +=fR -EEE @IE ERH @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000
TEr THx TExn TExz FEx TErT  THEn
Liabilities af8
Finance lease obligation BEAMERE 5 9 42 228 - - 284
Other payables EiERFE 39,322 6 2,124 - - - M452
Clients’ balances REER 766,182 - - - - - 766,182
805,509 15 2,166 228 - - 807,918
Derivative financial instruments 74 €8T 2 30,646 - - - - - 30,646
836,155 15 2,166 228 - - 838,564
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 & —-L4HFFH
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKEKRER(Z)
3.3 Liquidity risk (continued) 3.3 REIMEREE (&)
3.3.1Undiscounted cash flows by contractual 331 BE#BIE HE 75 B KA B
maturities (continued) BELHE (&)
As at 31 December 2016 R-_E—XRF+_HA=+—H
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over
1 month months  months Years  5years Indefinite Total
-5 =3
—f@ARA  =@EAR +=Z@R —-ERf AR ERH Bz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$O000 HK$O000 HK$O000 HK$000
THr TEx Thr  TAT  TEr  FET TR
Liabilities af
Finance lease obligation BEAMERE 4 8 7 - - - 19
Other payables e R 19,793 1,302 859 - - - 21954
Borrowing B8 - - 55835 5583
Clients' balances ER&EH 473,904 - - - - - 473904
493,701 1310 56,701 - - - 551,712
Derivative financial instruments T4 & f T & 3,047 = - = - = 3,047
496,748 1,310 56,701 - - - 554759

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  F&. i[5 5% 4 il 4 [ 5 PR A
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table represents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date across the three levels of the
fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted price in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data.

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is
not based on observable market data.

3

fok B B 25 A I R

MEEREE (&)
34 sRMEEREBEBENAAE
341 BARBEFENLHMT A

TREJNNEE BIREBVEH
HEAE7HR S B TH : WE
FT S E MR AR EFRBIE R =1E
FRFURAEHENSRTA
NEREE SERIANRAR
EREBEEFAKENERAAE
ATERREENERNETRE -
ERESFAERMAT

FIR(ZESEFER) - NAEE R
MEHHME CRERB)FFER
ffE -

Fo  AREFESLREEM
SRUSBITAENRE KA
HEXMEE  HE2HEEN2
BVEE KRR RN AIBED
B8R -

FIR(ZEFR) : 2AEMRER

BMERMNTE - FAEEN2H
BARRIERAIBREMHEIE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(continued)

As at 31 December 2017

3 HM¥EREE(ZE)
34 2REEREENAIAEE)

341 BAREFEHNLTHET A (&)

R=F—tF+=A=+—-8

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1R E21R 3R @t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FTER TR FER FTER
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments ~ #T4 4T & - 139,567 - 139,567
Liabilities g%
Derivative financial instruments #7448 T & - 30,646 - 30,646
As at 31 December 2016 NR-_ZTE—XRF+_HA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R 28 F3MR st
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FHEL T FEL FHBT
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments 144 g T A = 77,377 - 77,377
Liabilities 8
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 €@ T A - 3,047 = 3,047

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  F&. i[5 5% 4 il 4 [ 5 PR A
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HM¥EREE(ZE)
34 2REEREENAIAEE)
341 BARBINENEHETA (Z)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

3.4.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

(continued)

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using forward exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

There have been no significant transfers between
level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

3.4.2 Financial assets and liabilities not measured at

fair value

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the fair value
of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value are not materially different
from their carrying amounts due to their short
maturities.

Balances due from agents and other receivables
include the contractual amounts for settlement of
trades and other obligations due to the Group.

Clients’ balances represent the margin deposits
received from clients and the unrealised profit or
loss from their trading activities under normal course
of business. Their carrying values are a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

EHIMNES WM AN ERBREH
REVRHAERETE - FAEENE
B BRERET ERE -

RBEE-_ZT—+tFR_FT—X
F+—A=+—HILFEE  F1
W&~ FoMR N E3L M E A

iz
Ak ©

342 WHEAREGBHZHEE

REE

RZE—tFR_F—RF+=
A=+—8 B AEE T IER
AREFENSREERBEN
FIHAEEE - ME AR EREERR
EETESAEER -

FEMARIR 4G R e B Ath FE W R B
RENAEBARGENRXZNE
MR REMEL -

EFESRIENREREBBES K
BREFPHRES TR RMFET
BEE RS ARER MK EE -
FREEEEALERSE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

(a) Financial assets

MEERER (&)

34 TREERAGBNAIARMEE)

343 Y EMEERTHMEE

(a) =& E

The following financial assets are subject

to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

As at 31 December 2017

TR EEXEHE
BT —FREE
BUUmERR -

+ Al 58
&

R-E—tH+-A=1+—H

Related amounts not set off

in the balance sheet
YRREERER
EHNRBERE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts of
Gross financial financial
amounts of liabilities assets
recognised set offin presented in Cash
financial ~ the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet Instruments pledged Amount
REE
BRRREH SEERRRA
BRALR CHIALR KRN BER
EEAE OEAE SREETE  SEIA HeHAR B
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR THR THR THR THR
Derivative financial fTESHMIA
instruments 217,652 (78,085) 139,567 - - 139,567
Total it 217,652 (78,085) 139,567 - - 139,567

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERMEE(Z)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 sRIEEREBNAAE(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 43 e HMEERCHMERE (E)
(continued)
(a) Financial assets (continued) (a) &FHEE &)
As at 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+=-A=+—H

Related amounts not set off

in the balance sheet
PAREERRR
BHNABNE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts of
Gross financial financial
amounts of liabilities assets
recognised setoffin  presented in Cash
financial  the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
assets sheet sheet  Instruments pledged Amount
AERAEE SEARRA
ERALR CEIER  AENW EER
BEEE  BRAE oREEFE  SRIA Hefdn 3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THT THT THT THT THT

Derivative financial fTESRIA
instruments 85,681 (8,304) 77,377 - - 77,377
Total @it 85,681 (8,304) 71,377 - - 71,377
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(continued)

(b) Financial liabilities

The following financial liabilities are subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements.

As at 31 December 2017

BB ERER (&)
34 TREERAGBNAIARMEE)
343 HHTHMBER A ME ()

(b) £HEE
UTepBESTEE - Ak
FIENITH — FREEE LR
U R ARR ©
R-ZE—t+tHF+=-A=+—H

Related amounts not set off

in the balance sheet
YRREEEER
BHENERZE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts of
Gross financial financial
amounts of assets liabilities
recognised set offin presented in Cash
financial ~ the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet Instruments pledged Amount
REE
BERNES EEEERRK
ERISR CRISR  FEIM 2ER
BEAE  SE4E CRAMFE SRIA ReHAm BE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ThR TAR TAR TAR TAR TAR
Derivative financial fTESRIA
instruments (108,731) 78,085 (30,646) - - (30,646)
Total by (108,731) 78,085 (30,646) - - (30,646)

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  F&. i[5 5% 4 il 4 [ 5 PR A



3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fok B B 25 A I R

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKEKRERE)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued) 34 sREEREBNAOAE(E)
3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 43 e HEERCHMERE(E)
(continued)
(b) Financial liabilities (continued) (b) =FEE (&)
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—RFt+-_A=+—H
Related amounts not set off
in the balance sheet
TRRNEEERR
REMEETE
Gross
amounts of Net
recognised  amounts of
Gross financial financial
amounts of assets liabilities
recognised setoffin  presented in Cash
financial  the balance  the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities sheet sheet  Instruments pledged Amount
RERAEEH BAEBEREERM
ERReR CRIeH 2518 BER
AR REST THARFE ¢RI ReEAR ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
Derivative financial fTEERTA
instruments (11,351) 8,304 (3,047) - - (3,047)
Total st (11,351) 8,304 (3,047) - - (3,047)
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 - &F—-LAF4E#H 1 1 3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

3.4.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
(continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (continued)

For the financial assets and liabilities subject
to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar arrangements above, each agreement
between the Group and the counterparty allows
for net settlement of the relevant financial assets
and liabilities when both elect to settle on a
net basis. In the absence of such an election,
financial assets and liabilities will be settled
on a gross basis, however, each party to the
master netting agreement or similar agreement
will have the option to settle all such amounts
on a net basis in the event of default of the
other party. Per the terms of each agreement,
an event of default includes failure by a party
to make payment when due; failure by a party
to perform any obligation required by the
agreement (other than payment) if such failure
is not remedied within 30 days after notice of
such failure is given to the party; or bankruptcy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5

3.6

Financial instruments by category

All the financial assets and financial liabilities (including
cash and bank balances, client trust bank balances,
balance due from/to agents, other receivables, amounts
due to other related parties, client balances, borrowing,
other payables and finance lease obligation) in the
consolidated balance sheet are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method as “loans and
receivables” and “other financial liabilities at amortised
cost” except for the derivative financial instruments and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
are carried at fair value.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which
is a broader concept than the “equity” on the face of
balance sheet, are:

e To comply with the liquid capital requirements
under the Securities and Futures Commission in
Hong Kong, Australian Securities and Investments
Commission in Australia and the Securities
Commission in New Zealand for its subsidiaries
which are licensed corporations;

e To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders;

e To support the Group's stability and growth; and

e To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERMEE(Z)
3.6 Capital management (continued) 36 EXEHE (&)
The Group’s gearing ratio at the balance sheet date is AEEREEHNBBLEEROT :
shown below:
2017 2016
—E —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total debt (Epr L 252 55,853
Total equity HEmiRE 547,227 514,517
Gearing ratio BELL = 0.05% 10.86%
Total debt includes finance lease obligation and bank B AR AR ERAENRIRITE
borrowing. o
All licensed corporations within the Group complied with REEZZE—+tFR T RFILF
their required liquid capital during the years ended 2017 B AEBMEFEEAEBEETHE
and 2016. MEEERIIE °
4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EZSi{4sHRHE

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are fair
value of share options.

The Group determines the fair value of share options
at the date at which they are granted with reference to
the fair value estimated under a valuation model which
are commonly used in the market. The assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are subject to managements’ best estimation. Changes
in assumptions about these assumptions could affect
reported fair value of share options. Management use
their judgment to make assumptions that are mainly
reference to the historical data of comparable listed
companies.

More details of the assumptions made are included in
Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies

Management of the Group has not made any significant
critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the executive directors
and senior management of the Group. The Group’s operating
businesses are structured and managed separately according
to the nature of their operations and the services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers services which are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. The Board of Directors considers the business from
a geographical and product perspective.

Summary details of the business segments are as follows:

(a) the margin dealing segments engage in the provision
of leveraged foreign exchange, commodity and index
trading services in Australia, Hong Kong and New
Zealand;

(b) the unleveraged cash dealing segment engages in the
provision of non-leveraged foreign exchange trading
services in New Zealand. Unleveraged cash dealing
services were provided to corporate clients, in particular,
those clients engaged in money changing business for
the purpose of hedging their cash positions and meeting
settlement obligations. The Group is rewarded by the
spread between the price quoted to our clients and the
price offered by our market makers; and

(c) the investment sales segments engage in provision of
sales and marketing functions to clients in New Zealand
and Australia; and

(d) the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) business segment
engages in provision of trading and settlement of
precious metals in PRC.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with
reference to the prices charged to third parties and there was
no change in the basis during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The segment information provided to the management for the
reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2017

and 2016 is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

fok B B 25 A I R

5 o&®mEE)

RENDEEHOT

£
[=]

HE_FT—+tHFE_ZF—XRF+_H

—+t—BHULEFE BRSO BAEEE

BE—_Z—tHF+=-HBA=1+—HLFE

New Hong New New
Zealand Kong  Australia  Zealand  Zealand  Australia
Margin Margin Margin Cash Investment  Investment PRC
dealing  dealing  dealing  dealing sales sales  Business Unallocated Elimination Total
#ER Bt o AEE AEW 3]
REERE RELRS REENE  BERG  REHE REHE tEER ROR Hi it
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKY000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TEn  TEn  TRr TER  TEn  TEn  TERr  TER  TEn  Tén
Segment revenue and other income: ABREREMAA -
Foreign exchange and other RENIEPHNER
tracing income earnedt from ERAMA
external customers 364,042 142 4472 1,136 - - 28,369 - - 398,161
Inter-segment sales APREE - e 7,550 - 1662 2,305 - - (101,2%9) -
Segment revenue s 402 74815 1202 113% 1662 2305 28,369 - (101,239 398,161
Fee and commission income ERRASKA 101,444 - 13 - - - - 1318 - 108775
Other incomef(losses) £ A/ (BE) 309 - 1 % - 17 08 9700 - 799
Total revenue and oherincome.~ MEREMMAEE 465795 74815 12,03 1,161 16,621 2412 26313 17018 (101,280) 514982
Seqment profi/{loss) AFER/ (EE) 8,10 64064 11,254 1 5 (1,219 (08 17018 141,548
Other unallocated staff costs EpRARETRA (31579)
Other unallocated administiative ~ EfFARAHR
and operating expenses BERx (74,950)
Profit before tax WianaA 35,019
Income tax expense Gif1i5 (7,665)
Profitfor the year ERRT 27,354
Other segment information: B ABEH
Depreciation and amortisation &R & - 66 % - - 1 1800 1053 12521
Lease payments REM - 762 - - - - 248 10205 13,395
Finance cost RARMA 35 - - - - - 163 1415
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 5 SEwEE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE—_Z—R"FT+A=1T—HIFE
New Hong New New
Zealand Kang Zealand lealand  Australia
Margin Margin Cash  Investment  Investment PRC
dealing dealing dealing sales sales  Business Unallocated  Elimination Total
A Bk #ER Gl 2l
REERS KEERS HERZ RAHE RERE  PEEH AR 44 #it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
Thr T Thr T T T T T T
Segment revenue and A REMMA -
other income:
Foreign exchange and other ~ REJNIE FRISME
trading income eamed fom  REMRFHA
external customers 310,104 ) 4,251 - - (4,066) - - 310,287
Inter-segment sales NHEEE - 113659 - 14,489 13,317 - - (141465) -
Segment revenue PEkE 310,104 113,657 4251 14,489 13,317 (4,066) - (141465) 310287
Fee and commissionincome B RESHA 53,700 - - - - - 1,656 - 55356
Other (losses)income £t (B8) /WA 1,096 - 47 - 81 17 (.217) - (3,036)
Total revenue and other income Mz REMMAZE 364900 113,657 4,298 14,489 13,398 (4,049) (2621)  (141465) 362,607
Segment profifloss) ARER/ (BR) 52561 104,238 3208 952 937  (17388)  (2621) 150,337
Other unallocated staff costs ~ EtAAEE THA (35,459)
Other unallocated administrative -t R D B /7B k&
and operating expenses ERX (60,635)
Profit before tax B ARA 54,243
Income tax expense R (15,555)
Profit for the year ERRN 38,688
Other segment information: ~~ Eth A HFEH -
Depreciation and amortisation 7% - 82 - - 2 928 7115 8146
Lease payments HEM - 953 - - - 2995 8670 12548
Finance cost RENA % - - - - 1126 5 1,166
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group’s major
income from external customers is derived from its operations
in New Zealand.

fok B B 25 A I R

2 EEE (2)

RARERES - REBRBINEEEFH
TERAREERAARALEERS -

2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RE

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

New Zealand 41t 75 28 365,178 314,355
Others Hih 32,983 (4,068)
398,161 310,287

The locations of its non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets) are as follows:

HIERDEE (TREETCHEAEE) D
T

2017 2016
ZE—tF T RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong EHE 13,831 8,943
New Zealand 41t 7E 28 23,761 18,311
Australia M 958 1,395
PRC A 5,665 9,198
44,215 37,847

None of the external customers contributes more than major
of the Group’s trading income individually in the respective
years.

Information on segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed
as this information is not presented to the Board of Directors as
they do not assess performance of reportable segments using
information on assets and liabilities.

MEINBEFEBESFEAERRZ I
AR EZED °

HREFEVEEAABEERRENE
BIEH A AT & 0 BRI - BB D A
ERBENERTESERTESS - BM
WEKBEBBER
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6 OTHER INCOME/(LOSSES)

6 HfulA (&#E)

2017 2016

=E—tF T RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHBxT T

Interest income B A 2,661 1,877
Exchange gains/(losses), net & Uz (B518) @ F5 5,384 (5,814)
Handling fee rebate FEE B - 865
(Loss)/gain on disposal of fixed assets HEEE&EE 2 (EE) Uz (438) 36
Others H i 389 -
7,996 (3,036)

7 STAFF COSTS 7 BIMEAK

2017 2016

—E —ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET T

Staff costs (including directors’ BTN (BEEEME
remuneration (Note 28)): (K15t28)) -

Salaries, bonus and allowances T& - JEAL KRG 54,144 50,595
Pension scheme contributions BRIKE T 1,319 1,309
Staff option expenses (Note 26) B THRER S (#7126) 1,468 8,201
56,931 60,105
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ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING 8 {THRHEMEZEX
EXPENSES

2017 2016
—E— 5 A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Management fees paid to the then YN TEREEZERA TR
immediate holding company BB (f1:£30(a)(i))

(Note 30(a)(i)) 664 857
Other office occupation expenses HEt=FEAARX 4,004 2,873
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN B 2

— Audit services — FBIZRFE 2,966 2,833
— Non-audit services —EEZR 679 611
Information services expenses & AR 7% i 2 6,417 4,018
Professional and consultancy fee BHENAAE 6,798 3,508
Repair and maintenance MR EE(BIERGEE)
(including system maintenance) 13,708 9,745
Marketing, advertising and MGHE  BESEEEEMRAX
promotion expenses 22,864 16,149
Handling fee expenses FEEMRAS 22,126 10,468
Travelling expenses =IRE 3,966 4,038
Entertainment expenses R EB & 970 1,901
Insurance R Bz 845 709
Bank charges RITE A 975 1,599
Staff training 8 T3l 388 1,071
Client’s debit balances written off B [ Al A R e 1,091 2,115
Impairment of intangible asset BV EEZRE 1,730 -
Others HAty 6,213 3,497
96,404 65,992
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit during the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profit during the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates. The income tax expenses of the Group are charged
at a tax rate of 28% (2016: 28%) in New Zealand, 30% (2016:
30%) in Australia and 25% (2016: 25%) in PRC in accordance
with the local tax authorities.

9 MBHAX

BB RSB TR G 14 5t FE SR B A
LA16.5% (ZF — 734 : 16.5%) KB K5
R - BINE R HOTRIBEIRANFE G5
JE =R B v I LA 7 &2 B 48 & P fE B SR 1T
R R E - RIBE ISR - NEH
AR ~ RN & E’\Jﬁﬁ/aﬁﬁaﬁﬂi’\ J
1208% (ZZF — 7% 1 28%) ~ 30% (=&
— N4 1 30%) 25% (ZZF—7<%F : 25%)
BB ERETHE -

2017 2016
ZE—tF T RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FB T
Current tax: BHARA I8
Charge for the year FAZH 4,992 15,416
Over-provision in prior year EFBREEE (680) (383)
Others E A 444 249
Deferred tax: EIERIE ¢
Charge for the year (Note 19) FAMER (H5E19) 2,909 273
Income tax expense TS i 7,665 15,555
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FBIT
Profit before income tax & BT 15 A Al v A 35,019 54,243
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate &% 754 € fi R 51 & #) §i 18 5,778 8,950
Effect of different taxation rates in E A B ZR A [F] B 2R B 52 &
other countries 1,031 1,430
Income not subject to tax IR R A (1,156) (673)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 1,814 5,343
Temporary differences not recognized KR E R4 =58 434 318
Over-provision in prior year EFBREREE (680) (383)
Others HAth 444 570
Income tax expense FriSfif 7,665 15,555
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10 DIVIDENDS

The Board does not declare the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

fok B B 25 A I R

10 RE

EFEETERBE-_F—tE+=F
=+— AU EEA RS (2B —AF
) -

11 SKREFN

(a) BREXRF

BRERBAILARRBRERE AR
AR AR AR F R B EITE BAAY
nEFHEEE -

2017 2016
ZE—tF T RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Profit attributable to equity holders RARIRERA ABAG R
of the Company 27,354 38,688

No. of shares No. of shares
iavig - g=! R B

Weighted average number of B 31T E AR a0 INFE 19 2

ordinary shares in issue

2,033,241,644 2,033,229,071

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &RxEAZF| GB1L) 1.35 1.90
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 11 BRER (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BRE#ETEF

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended AR B E#EE 2 Emikpn
31 December 2017 and 2016 are the same as basic WEE—_E—t+tFER T NF+ =
earnings per share as there are no dilutive ordinary A=1+—HItFEZ2SRE#EERTF R
shares. BREEARZFER -

The effects of the share options granted on 19 August RetEBE T —tF N _ZF—~F
2015 and 29 December 2016 (Note 26) which are T+ A=+—"HIEFEZEKEE
outstanding on 31 December 2017 and 2016 are not B WEAFAR-_Z—AF/\A
included in the computation of diluted earnings per share +hBE_E—XRFt+=-_A=+hHd
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. EEETR S —+ER T —RFE

ToA=t+—BRERITEZERE
(Mf7E26) 2 o2 -
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12 Y- - BERRE

fok B B 25 A I R

Furniture,
fixtures and Computer Leasehold Motor
equipment equipment improvements vehicles Total
BE #E
SET ERRE HE%EE "E HY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT TET TAT
As at 1 January 2016 RZZ—-RF—H—-H
Cost KR 8,334 15,104 8,761 2,668 34,867
Accumulated depreciation 25E (7,013) (8,605) (7.821) (2,031) (25,470)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,321 6,499 940 637 9,397
For the year ended HE_ZT-—~F
31 December 2016 TZA=T-RLEE
Opening net carrying amount EOREFE 1,321 6,499 940 637 9,397
Exchange adjustments B %R 9 (31) 21 8 7
Additions RE 1,006 1,559 2,937 - 5,502
Disposals HE = = = (64) (64)
Depreciation & (654) (2,047) (1413) (328) (4,442)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 1,682 5,980 2,485 253 10,400
As at 31 December 2016 RIE-—ARF+ZA=1T—H
Cost AR 9,368 16,636 11,693 1,927 39,624
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (7,686) (10,656) (9,208) (1,674) (29,224)
Net carrying amount EmFE 1,682 5,980 2,485 253 10,400
For the year ended HE-Z—+F
31 December 2017 TZAZT-BILEE
Opening net carrying amount FENEREFE 1,682 5,980 2,485 253 10,400
Exchange adjustments B 3 A 68 125 102 7 302
Additions NE 54 1,968 - 2,250 4,272
Disposals irf = - 4 (460) - (464)
Depreciation il (605) (2,395) (1,339) (452) (4,791)
Closing net carrying amount FERERFE 1,199 5,674 788 2,058 9,719
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+ZA=1+—8
Cost KR 8,602 17,191 11,305 4,067 41,165
Accumulated depreciation 2ETE (7,403) (11,517) (10,517) (2,009) (31,446)
Net carrying amount FESE 1,199 5,674 788 2,058 9,719
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 - &F—-LAF4E#H
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13 |BILEE

Trading
Computer right
software (Note) Total
RAE
EREHG (Kizt) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2016 RZZE—X~"F—H—H
Cost XA 15,416 - 15,416
Accumulated amortisation 2T 5 (7,737) - (7,737)
Net carrying amount REFE 7,679 = 7,679
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE—_ZT— A "E+-_A=+—H
LFE
Opening net carrying amount FHREEE 7,679 = 7,679
Exchange adjustments TGRS 131 - 131
Additions NE 21,666 1,675 23,341
Amortisation B (3,704) = (3,704)
Closing net carrying amount FEREEFE 25,772 1,675 27,447
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-—RFE+=A=1+—H
Cost HEN 37,274 1,675 38,949
Accumulated amortisation ZEtHEsH (11,502) - (11,502)
Net carrying amount FEFE 25,772 1,675 27,447
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZE-_ZT—+F+-A=+—H
FFE
Opening net carrying amount FUREFE 25,772 1,675 27,447
Exchange adjustments B 5 AR 2 778 55 833
Additions NE 15,676 - 15,676
Amortisation B (7,730) - (7,730)
Impairment E - (1,730) (1,730)
Closing net carrying amount FEREEEE 34,496 - 34,496
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-_A=+—H
Cost A 52,702 1,802 54,504
Accumulated amortisation and ZETEHERRE
impairment (18,206) (1,802) (20,008)
Net carrying amount RHEE 34,496 - 34,496

Note: The balance represents the fee paid pursuant to the
membership agreement with TPME, as mentioned in Note 1
to the consolidated financial information, which is not subject
to amortization and is assessed for impairment annually. As a
result of the Suspension, the balance is fully impaired as at 31
December 2017.
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14 OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

15

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14 HEWFIE BAARERZRSE

DEPOSITS
2017 2016
—E— 5 A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental and utility deposits e R RAAREES 3,954 4,525
Prepayments B RIE 5,961 3,962
Other receivables H fth pE W SRR 1,909 2,388
Total 45 11,824 10,875

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other receivables and
deposits approximate to their fair values.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AR E A FEUWGRIR M & R EE S A
RNAERE -

15 fTE€®MI A

2017 2016
—E2—+tF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
Current assets REEE
Derivative contracts PTEEH 139,567 77,377
Current liabilities REBEE
Derivative contracts PTEEH (30,646) (3,047)
Total 5 108,921 74,330

The Group trades in foreign currencies, commodities and
other products through its margin trading business. In order
to protect against their exposures to fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates and commodity prices, the Group has entered
into a number of foreign exchange forward transactions and
contracts for difference with the Group’s bankers in the normal
course of business.

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts at 31 December 2017 and 2016
are HK$14,292,459,000 and HK$3,707,94 1,000 respectively.

AEEEBEREBEE L HEFETING -
HmEEMERRS RREAEETX
[EXNEmERRBZERTZE  KNEE
RIEEXBBEIEF BEARIRITIILZ A
INEBRHIR G NEEEH -

R_E—+FER " FE—RF+_A=+—
H #mAFEERIINESHNEEARASTE
2 Bl A14,292,459,0007 7T & 3,707,941,000
BT °
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16

17

BALANCES DUE FROM AGENTS 16 EUWARE L e
2017 2016
Y- 5 —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Balances due from: FEW 4585 -

— agents — {38 83,969 10,950
— TPME (Note 30 (xi)) —REESBR ST (M7£30(xi) 4,582 46,606
Total BET 88,551 57,556

The carrying amounts of the Group’s balances due from
agents approximate to their fair values. The Group is free
to withdraw the funds from accounts maintained with these
agents at any time.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT TRUST
BANK BALANCES

17

AEEERAEESHOFAEREEARE
M o AL E R BER B B IZEVERZ FHRIE
FIRZMERFANES -

RERBRITEKURETFETRITE
53

2017 2016

—E—tF —TRF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET FET

Cash and bank balances IR & MIRTT 464 430,198 317,554
Fixed deposits with banks RITE TR 87,553 160,282
Client trust bank balances B iRIT4 5% 586,299 412,567
1,104,050 890,403

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with
authorised financial institutions to hold clients’ deposits
arising from normal business transactions. The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations
in the ordinary course of business, and therefore they are not
included as cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
cash flows.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, fixed deposits of
HK$86,015,000 and HK$158,920,000 respectively are
pledged to banks for banking facilities. No overdraft facility
was utilised by the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
None of the bank deposits are placed with market makers as
collateral as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND CLIENT TRUST

18

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17 BERBITERURETFEERITLE

BANK BALANCES (continued) £ (&)
For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statements, MEASRenERAms HekReEE
cash and cash equivalents comprises of the following: YA N &S -
2017 2016
—E—+5F —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash and bank balances B RIRI TR 430,198 317,554
Fixed deposits with bank with original  FR&I R =& A N E|HiH
maturity within three months RITE BT X 1,538 1,362
431,736 318,916

FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the

18 BEHEEAE

HEREER LAHEEERMNEMR -

lease asset revert to the lessor in the event of default. BEBNSMHR 2SN GEEDE
A e
2017 2016
—F—tF T AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Gross finance lease liabilities RmEHEAFERESE
— minimum lease payments — =EMEENK
Not later than 1 year —F RN 56 19
Later than 1 year and —FERERAFA
no later than 5 years 228 -
284 19
Future finance charges on FEHERNRKEE
finance leases (32) (1)
Present value of finance lease mEHNEAERE
liabilities 252 18
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18 FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

18

MEEERE ()
REEEaERENT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET THET

Not later than 1 year —F RN 47 18
Later than 1 year and no later than —FERERAFA

five years 205 -

252 18

The Group leases various vehicles under non-cancellable
finance lease agreements. The lease terms are 3 to 5 years
and ownership of the assets lie within the Group.

19 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual
entity basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

19

ANEERET AR E H S Hhak h
ETER-HEHA=ZNF MEEM

EHEASEME -

3 SIE B 18

B A EREN A R BN HA T 18 & A B2 Bl A
MIAREEE - MREFRRY MF—#E
- AR EBDEARIELER IR E EE A
BRI RERMEEEER AN R
(AT S AR SH AR 8R) SFIEA T -

2017 2016
—E—+E —FT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets to be recovered BEEFRIAE E
after more than twelve months (EBim121E A & Uk @) 1,367 1,876
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled BEERIEEE
after more than twelve months (EBim121E A & 1) (3,206) (851)
(1,839) 1,025
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19 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

20

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fok B B 25 A I R

19 EZERIE (&)

The major components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) ?%“/:l\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬂ'ﬂﬁ:ﬁﬁlﬁéﬁ/
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the (RE)NEZHD RFALBMAT

movements during the year are as follows:

Other

Employee temporary
benefits Depreciation differences Total

Hth
EEEA nE ERUEE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAET TAT THT
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—R"E—A—H 1,194 (620) 699 1,273
Exchange adjustments B 5, 5A 20 (1) 6 25
(Charge)/credit for the year FRHK) EEA (63) (214) 4 (273)
At 31 December 2016 R-_ZE—R"F+=-A=+—H 1,151 (835) 709 1,025
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—F—H 1,151 (835) 709 1,025
Exchange adjustments BE 5 B 37 3 11 45
Charge for the year FANM (45) (1,612) (1,252) (2,909)
At 31 December 2017 —tE+-A=+—H 1,143 (2,450) (532) (1,839)

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 20 HittENRIBERETEE
2017 2016
—E2—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Accrued rental benefit FET A2 2 231 456
Accrued audit fees EEtEZE N 2,781 2,210
Other accruals Hu et &M 5,257 4,279
Commission payable A2 27,825 11,873
Employee entitlements ER#EmS 11,820 9,638
Deferred revenue AT W 2 - 193
Other payables H b & 5KOR 5,358 3,136
53,272 31,785

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other payables and

accrued liabilities approximate to their fair values.

=

<

AREEH
BERR

BHE% -
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21 BORROWING 21 B8

2017 2016
—ZE—+fF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT T

Current B HA
Bank borrowing RITEE - 55,835
- 55,835

As at 31 December 2016, the bank borrowing bears an interest
rate at 4.35% per annum, was secured by bank deposits of

HK$68,860,848 and was repayable within 1 year.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowing approximate to

their fair values.

22 CLIENTS’ BALANCES

The balances represent margin deposits received from clients
and the realised profit or loss from their trading activities under
normal course of business. The carrying amounts approximate

to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N 203
5r A B 5 iR 2R B
23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 A&

Number of Issued
shares share
in issue capital

B2 81T
BHGEBE BRITRA
HK$'000
BT
As at 1 January 2016 W—_ZE—XRF—H—H 2,033,040,000 20,330

Issuance of new ordinary shares 1T B AR I 35 1T Y

upon exercise of share options gk (fatze)

(Note 26) 200,000 2
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—RFTHA=+—H 2,033,240,000 20,332
As at 1 January 2017 R—E—+F—HA—H 2,033,240,000 20,332
Issuance of new ordinary shares 1T{E AR R BT Y

upon exercise of share options Mgk (M atze)

(Note 26) 50,000 1
As at 31 December 2017 R—E—+F+_H=+—H 2,033,290,000 20,333
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24 CAPITAL RESERVE

The balance represents the difference between the book
value of the net assets of KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited,
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited and KVB Kunlun International (HK)
Limited over the par value of the shares issued by LXL Capital
[I Limited, LXL Capital Ill Limited and LXL Capital IV Limited in
exchange for these subsidiaries as part of the reorganisation
completed in 2012.

24

EXRf#E

2% & 82 F8KVB Kunlun New Zealand
Limited * KVB Kunlun Pty Limited & & &
B(BB) BRAREEFENERRE
EA| XL Capital Il Limited * LXL Capital Il
Limited & LXL Capital IV Limited/E &R —
T — —FRKNEA D RUARBEZE
B AR MEBEITHRMNEBENZEZRE -

25 RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 25 mEFZEIFIELEE B 2YHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Finance
leases leases Borrowing Borrowing
due within due after due within due after
1 year 1 year 1 year 1 year Total
—FR 8 —FHRIH L E —FHIH
ZREHE ZRERE 2B 2B @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2017 RZZT—tF-A-H 18 - 55,835 - 55,853
Changes from financing BEFEIR SR 2
cash flows: 2E
Repayment of finance BEREMEERE
lease obligations (41) - - - (41)
Repayment of borrowing BEEE - - (55,835) - (55,835)
Exchange adjustments ER AR 1 4 - - 5
Other charges: Hihgeg:
New Finance lease MIERMERE 63 201 - - 264
Interest on finance lease MEREZFE 6 - - - 6
At 31 December 2017 RZZB—+F
+=ZA=+—-A 47 205 - - 252
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 August 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company
granted 40,000,000 share options to 95 individuals
(“Grantees”) for their subscription of new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.95 per share,
with varying vesting period and validity from the date of grant.
35 out of 95 of the Grantees were granted share options
which are exercisable for a period of three years commencing
on the date of grant to 18 August 2018. 12 out of 95 of the
Grantees were granted share options which are exercisable
for a period of three years commencing on the date falling on
the first anniversary of the date of grant to 18 August 2019,
with a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
The remaining 48 Grantees were granted options which are
exercisable for a period of two years commencing on the
date falling on the second anniversary of the date of grant to
18 August 2019, with a vesting period of two years from the
date of grant. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
12,200,000 share options were granted to the directors and
chief executives of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.

fok B B 25 A I R

26 fEiRAERTE

RZZE—RAFENA+TNA  KARESE
m195% A= ([ ##H A ) £ H40,000,00013
FERHE - HESERBAATBRATZRE
{BH0.01B Ty 3T & 3@A% -

%SRBI IR T IR H0.95 8 T E K
FLAITIE - BIRE BTN EBERE
WHAA Rl o 95 R IER AR HIS5BER AN
BT REE BT == — \FENA
TNA\BARIE=FZHRATTE 2 BARKE -
BEEFRAPNI2ZERAERE TR
FEHBEY—RAEERRAE_ZT—NAFN
A+ N NBALE=FZHERNITEZER
o REHARBEL R —F 2T
ASZIER NER TR R EH BB FE
BEiTE=F—NFNA+/\HAILMRE
ZHIRAITE 2 ERE - BEHARKD
H EfRE 5T R4 o B #% 1 #940,000,00017 f&
BRiEF RAREEREBITHRABER
12,200,00017 B& B& 4 ©

AR EIW AR HEERT AR ERER K
MEEBRRE -
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26 REARMESTEI(E)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as RARITEEM RSB EHH AT ¢
follows:
Outstanding Outstanding
asat 31 Granted Forfeited Exercised asatd
December during during during December Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2016 the period the period the period 2017 price  Exercise period
RZ8-Rf RZB-LF
tZA=t-H RAA ~ fTZR=+-8 ) )
BEA RiBH AR REARE wEM  REROR HATE hﬁ% T8
HK
BT
Liu Stefan 19 August 2015 8,300,000 - - - 8,300,000 09 19 August 2015to
18 August 2018
Bk “Z-RENATAA “Z-15\ATHRE
“Z-N\ENATIR
Ng Chee Hung Frederick 19 August 2015 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 095 19 August 2015t
\ 18 August 2018
RIEE ZZ-RENATAR -5 \ATNAE
ZE-\ENATNR
Stephen Gregory McCoy 19 August 2015 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 09 19 August 2015to
18 August 2018
Stephen Gregory McCoy “E-1EN\ATNA “E2-a5\ATNAE
ZE-N\ENATIR
Zhao Guixin 19 August 2015 300,000 - - - 300,000 095 19 August 2015t
18 August 2018
HER “Z-RENATAA ZZ-RE\ITNER
“Z-\ENATNR
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser 19 August 2015 300,000 - - - 300,000 095 19August 20150
18 August 2018
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser “E-RENATNA “E-RE\ATNAZ
ZZ-\ENATNR
Lin Wenhui 19 August 2015 300,000 - - - 300,000 095 19August2015to
- 18 August 2018
e ZT-RENATAR “Z-hE\fTNAZ
ZE-\ENATNR
Employees of group companies 19 August 2015 16,500,000 - (950,000) - 15,550,000 095 19August 201510 1
8 August 2018
SEATER “Z-RENATAA ZZ-RE\ATNER
“Z-\ENATNR
Employees of group companies 19 August 2015 1,250,000 - (250,000) - 1,000,000 095 19August 2016t
18 August 2019
SEARER ZZ-RENATAR T E\ATNRE
ZZ-NENATNR
Employees of group companies 19 August 2015 4,300,000 - (300,000) - 4,000,000 095 19August 2017 o
18 August 2019
SEATES “E-TEN\ATNE T tE\ATNBZ
ZE-NENATIR
Consultants 19 August 2015 400,000 - - - 400,000 095 19August 2016 o
18 August 2019
R “Z-RENATAA ZZREVITNER
“Z-NENATIR
Consultants 19 August 2015 550,000 - (50,000) - 500,000 095 19August2017to
18 August 2019
B ZZ-RENATAR “TtE\ATNRE
ZZ-NENATNR
35,200,000 - (1550,000) - 33,650,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Details of the share options granted on 19 August 2015 was as
follows:

Weighted average share HK$0.3133
option price at the grant date:

Risk free interest rate: 0.821%

Expected volatility: 59.08%

Expected dividend yield: 1.63%

Expected exercise multiple: Directors: 2.8x exercise price

Others: 2.2x exercise price

The measurement date of the share options was 19 August
2015, being the date of grant of the share options. The
expected dividend yield is determined with reference to
historical dividend payment history of comparable listed
companies up to the measurement date. The expected
volatility of share price is determined with reference to
annualised historical weekly volatility of comparable listed
companies’ share prices as of the valuation date, as extracted
from Bloomberg.

A total of HK$381,000 share option expenses were recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the current year.

fok B B 25 A I R

26 ERRESTE ()

Z1E R HARE T E AR RN LA ST B A
MARE - STHEBRIEARBEMANEE
RBREDERESREMET - BIREE
BERERLETEBERENEESTRME L - ©
ZE-RAFNATNBEREAERENF
BT

R H B ER 8 Nt 0.3133% 7T
THBERERR

R FE 0.821%

TEHER IR 59.08%

TEHIR B 1.63%

FEHITEEE BE 17 (E2.85

Hity - 172 B2.21%

BRENTGEERAR-_ZE—AF/N\AT+AI
B BREEREN B - FHREERT)
SERA R AR EEEHHNBG
EREN KRB MEE o BRER TR IE
2ERBAZENRAIE LR LM AFMAR
BHEMEAMNFEBESBEREM
BE °

ANEFEREFE 2 U R R 8B R
X & #£73381,000/% 7T °
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26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 29 December 2016, the Board of Directors of the
Company granted 40,000,000 share options to 95 individuals
(“Grantees”) for their subscription of new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

These share options are exercisable at HK$0.592 per share,
with varying vesting period and validity from the date of grant.
37 out of 95 of the Grantees were granted share options which
are exercisable for a period of three years commencing on
the date of grant to 28 December 2019. 9 out of 95 of the
Grantees were granted share options which are exercisable
for a period of three years commencing on the date falling
on the first anniversary of the date of grant to 28 December
2020, with a vesting period of one year from the date of grant.
The remaining 49 Grantees were granted options which are
exercisable for a period of two years commencing on the date
falling on the second anniversary of the date of grant to 28
December 2020, with a vesting period of two years from the
date of grant. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
11,750,000 share options were granted to the directors and
chief executives of the Company.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options in cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as

fok B B 25 A I R

26 ERRESTE ()

MARITERNBRESREZFHWT

follows:
Outstanding Outstanding
asat  Granted  Forfeited  Exercised asat
31 December during during during  31December  Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2016 theyear  theyear theyear 2017 price  Exercise period
RoE-AE HoB-1E
) tZAz1-8  RER  MEM  WER fIBSt-R
ERA RiEAH HATHE b iz frf WA ﬂgﬁ frEsmE
BT
Liu Stefan 29 December 2016 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
; \ 28 December 2019
B 0k ZE-"ET-A-TNhRE
TZAZt+hA Z5-NETZRAZTNR
Ng Chee Hung Frederick 29 December 2016 1,850,000 - - - 1,850,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
\ 28 December 2019
REE 20 ZE-"ET-A-TNhRE
TZAZt+hA Z5-NETZRAZTNR
Stephen Gregory McCoy 29 December 2016 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
28 December 2019
Stephen Gregory McCoy “EAE “E-NE+-R-tNAE
TZAZt+hHA Z5-NETZAZTNR
Zhao Guixin 29 December 2016 300,000 - - - 300,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
\ 28 December 2019
fielid | IE-RF ZE-~ETZAZTNRE
TZAZthH Z5-NETZAZTNR
Corenlis Jacabus Keyser 29 December 2016 300,000 - - - 300,000 0592 29 December 2016 {0
28 December 2019
Corenlis Jacobus Keyser “EE 3 ET-A-thAZ
TZA=TAA ZE-NETZAZTNH
Lin Wenhui 29 December 2016 300,000 - - - 300,000 0592 29 December 2016 to
o \ 28 December 2019
y¢ ] 0k - "ETZA-thRE
TZAZTAA “E-AEtZAZtNA
Employees of group companies 29 December 2016 17,900,000 - (200,000) (50,000) 17,650,000 0592 29 December 2016t
‘ _ \ 28 December 2019
SENAES 0k ZE-"ET-A-TNhRE
TZAZt+hA Z5-NETZRZTNR
Employees of group companies 29 December 2016 1,150,000 - (250,000) - 900,000 0592 29 December 2017 to
_ \ 28 December 2020
SENAER 0 ZE-tET-A-TNRE
TZAZt+hA ZECEETCACH\A
Employees of group companies 29 December 2016 8,500,000 - (1,550,000) - 6,950,000 0592 29 December 2018 {0
_ \ 28 December 2020
£ENAES ZE-R ZE-N\Et-A-ThREZ
TZAZt+hHA ZETEFZ AT
Consultants 29 December 2016 500,000 - (50,000) - 450,000 0592 29 December 2017 to
\ 28 December 2020
B TNk “E—tE-A-ThRE
TZAZthH ZEZSETZAZTIR
Consultants 29 December 2016 200,000 - - - 200,000 0592 29 December 2018 to
\ 28 December 2020
B ZE-5F - \Et-A-thAZ
TZAZThH ZEZETZAZTI\R
40,000,000 - (2,050,000) (50,000) 37,900,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Details of the share options granted on 29 December 2016 was
as follows:

Weighted average share option HK$0.2385
price at the grant date:

Risk free interest rate: 1.443%

Expected volatility: 70.97%

Expected dividend yield: 0%
Expected exercise multiple: Directors: 2.8x exercise price

Others: 2.2x exercise price

The measurement date of the share options was 29 December
2016, being the date of grant of the share options. The
expected dividend yield is determined with reference to
historical dividend payment history of comparable listed
companies up to the measurement date. The expected
volatility of share price is determined with reference to
annualised historical weekly volatility of comparable listed
companies’ share prices as of the valuation date, as extracted
from Bloomberg.

A total of HK$1,087,000 share option expenses were
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the current year.
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THE COMPANY

fok B B 25 A I R

27 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 27 AA G- EEEERZREBERT

Balance sheet of the Company AATZEEEER
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+E —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries (Note 29) KM B R 7 2% & (#17#29) 156,560 71,692
156,560 71,692
Current assets hEEE
Cash and bank balances IR e MIRTT A& 95,674 211,017
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B 8 A B Z FRIE 68,638 31,687
Loans to a subsidiary “LY—HHB AR ZER 101,603 62,037
Prepayments and other receivables T8 A5 5K I8 K H b fE U R IR 301 861
Total current assets MEEE#AE 266,216 305,602
Total assets EEHAE 422,776 377,294
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EakaE
Share capital [N 20,333 20,332
Reserves (Note (a)) " (H it (a)) 199,329 198,157
Retained earnings {RER & F| 182,635 156,830
Total equity FEEEE 402,297 375,319
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHHY B A Bl FkIE 17,321 171
Other payables and accrued liabilities  E {th fE {738 K fE =t B & 3,158 1,804
Total liabilities EEAE 20,479 1,975
Total equity and liabilities HMEZREE 422,776 377,294
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the AR EEBBEREESEN_E—\F
Board of Directors on 16 March 2018 and was signed on its ZRATRBEBELTRERE -
behalf.
Liu Stefan Stephen Gregory McCOY
2 k8 Stephen Gregory McCOY
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 & —-L4HFFH
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27 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 27 AA T SEERBEREESE (&)

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company fzk(a) AR B ZHEEET

Retained

Reserves earnings

fEE REZEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAET

As at 1 January 2016 MR=ZF—XRE—H—H 189,828 32,939

Profit for the year FEEREF — 123,831

Share option scheme FERE ST &I 8,201 =
Issuance of new ordinary shares upon 17{# 8RS #ERS ZX 1Ty FT T im A%

exercise of share options 128 60

As at 31 December 2016 R-ZE—-—XRNE+=-—HA=+—8H 198,157 156,830

As at 1 January 2017 R=-=—+t&—HF—H 198,157 156,830

Profit for the year FEERF - 25,480

Share option scheme B ST &l 1,154 314
Issuance of new ordinary shares upon 1755 B & 42 A 25 17 &9 3 i@ I%

exercise of share options 18 11

As at 31 December 2017 NR—ZE—+tFE+_-_HA=+—H 199,329 182,635
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 28 EENSREEENHNE

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

(a) EEEM<E
AEEHE—ZT—+tFR_T—\F

Emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the

Company by the Group during the years ended 31

December 2017 and 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

T A=t—RIEFERARAES
At RSB o

BE-_Z—+tHF+=-A=1+—HILEE

Estimated
Employer's Dis- value of
contribution  cretionary other
Director  Salaryand  to pension bonuses benefits
Name of director EEfZ fee commission scheme  (Note (b))  (Note(a)) Total
AR
FeR REIRhEe BERL  #HEE
Lok Be  BHR WHL) WHE) @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER TR TR Thx
Executive Directors: BTES:
Mr. Liu Stefan AMHELE 240 2,700 18 4,800 - 7,848
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick REBEE 21 1,301 16 736 - 2,264
Non-executive Directors: FUTES !
Mr. Li Zhi Da FHERE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy
ik 120 - - - - 120
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIFHTEES :
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEELL 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Comelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
ik 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Lin Wenhui IR & 240 - - - - 240
1,411 4,001 34 5,626 - 11,072
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 28 EERESREEEBENINS (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

(a) EEM= (&)

BE-—T—XF+-A=+—ALF
=

Estimated
Employer's Dis- value of
contribution  cretionary other
Director ~ Salaryand  to pension bonuses benefits
Name of director BENS fee  commission scheme  (Note(b)  (Note(a)) Total
o
Hek EXRAE EBEEL  HEHEE
E Yk fe  FEER  WHp)  WiEe) @5t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL AL AL THT THT THET
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Liu Stefan FmGEEE 240 2,700 18 2,891 2,152 8,001
Mr. Ng Chee Hung Frederick REBEE 240 1475 18 254 498 2,485
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Li Zhi Da FEERE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy
yt: 120 - - 144 269 533
Independent Non-executive Directors BV F#1TES
Ms. Zhao Guixin BEELL 240 - - - 81 321
Mr. Comelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
yk:3 240 - - - 81 321
Mr. Lin Wenhui R L& 240 - - - 81 321
1,440 4,175 36 3,289 3,162 12,102

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
no directors of the Group waived any emoluments and
no emolument was paid to any of the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

Note (a): Other benefits are housing allowance and share
options.

Note (b): Certain executive directors of the Company are
entitled to discretionary bonus payments which are
determined with reference to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the directors and
relevant market statistics during the year.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  F&. i[5 5% 4 il 4 [ 5 PR A
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 28 EER=EREEEBENIMS (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(a) EE=BME (&)

2017 2016
—ZE—+tfF —ZE R
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET TET
Emoluments paid or receivable in EARKEEES (Tm2
respect of a person’s services as Qﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%i\\ﬁ) 0 A 5
a director, whether of the company I 5 9 il
or its subsidiary undertaking 1,411 1,440
Emoluments paid or receivable in MEFREEE D AIKENE
respect of director’s other services in 2a$ﬁmﬁmﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁaﬁ
connection with the management of SR
the affairs of the company or its
subsidiary undertaking 9,661 10,662
11,072 12,102
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —ZF—-LAF4FEHR
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28 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid employees during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 included two and two
directors respectively, details of whose remuneration are
set out in Note 28(a) above. Details of the remuneration
of the remaining non-directors, highest paid employees
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are

28 EENSARAEEENMNE (&)

(b)

EEEEHAL

BE_Z—tFRER_ZT—X"F+=A
=+ HLEFE AEEaFHEES
EMEEMEES  HMESFEHN EX
MisE28(a) - HARIIFEFTHE = FTIEBRNE
ET—tFRZT—R"F+ZA=1+—
BIEFEMNMESFBERIAT :

as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TA&T
Salary and commission Fekfe 3,000 2,925

Employer’s contribution to BERIKSFTEIHN
pension scheme 126 18
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 2,525 1,413
5,651 4,356

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

The emoluments of the highest-paid individuals of the
Group other than the directors fall within the following

BE-_T—+tFER=_FT—X~"F+=A8
=+—HIEFE - BEAZEA LTI
SEBIMAKREE SN AR EE sk EA
BERE(E o

REEEEH AL (BRESRI) OB
AT #605 :

bands:
2017 2016
—E—t5F —ET—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THET
Emolument bands 3 I 6 s
— HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 — 0% 75 %£1,000,000/% 7T - =
— HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 — 1,000,001 T E
1,500,000/ 7T 2 2
— HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 — 1,500,001 T2
2,000,000/ - =
— HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 — 2,000,001 T2
2,500,0007% 7T - 1
— HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 — 3,000,001 T2
3,500,000/ 7T 1 -

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED [ iy [ [ 4 il 42 [ 5 B )
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 29 AMIB AR Z2RE

R=FE—t&+=A=+—8 ARAR T
BB A D A TR P A2

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries:

Particulars
of issued
Place of incorporation Principal activities and share capital/ Equity
Company name and kind of legal entity place of operation paid-up capital  Interest held
BRIRA/
GRS SRR EEERER TEEBROE B BERAFHE HAENRE
LXL Capital | Limited "® British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$600 100%
Limited liability company (direct)
LXL Capital | Limited #7 RBEAES HEREAAH REER RBRLES 600 7T 100%
(B#)
KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited New Zealand, Provision of leveraged foreign NZ$34,466,551 100%
Limited liability company exchange and other trading services, (indirect)
New Zealand
KVB Kunlun New Zealand Limited anE - BREAAA RAERNEREMR R 34,466,551 A RITT 100%
il (i)
KVB Kunlun Securities (NZ) Limited New Zealand, Provision of securities brokerage, NZ$1,000,000 100%
Limited liability company New Zealand (indirect)
KVB Kunlun Securities (NZ) Limited AEH  BEREAAF RUBHLLE  BEF 1,000,000 Fa i 70 100%
(RIE)
KVB Kunlun Pty Limited Australia, Limited liability company Provision of leveraged foreign and other AU$2,800,010 100%
trading services, Australia (indirect)
KVB Kunlun Pty Ltd BN BRERRA REERNERE MR SR - M 2,800,010 100%
(RIg)
KVB Kunlun International (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong, Limited liability company ~ Provision of management services, HK$100,000,000 100%
leveraged foreign exchange and other (indirect)
trading services, Hong Kong
ERER(B8)BRAT &% ARAERA REEBRRY  ERANER 100,000,000/ 7 100%
B2 5k B8 (Ri&)
LXL Capital I Limited " British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$400 100%
Limited liability company. (indirect)
LXL Capital Il Limited 7 RBBEAES HEREAAH REER ZABRLES 4005t 100%
(FI#E)
LXL Capital I1I Limited " British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$300 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital Ill Limited #2 RERIES BREEAH RELR  RERLHE 300%7T 100%
(RI)
LXL Capital IV Limited M British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
Limited liability company (indirect)
LXL Capital IV Limited #%7 RBEAES EREAAH REER RBRLES 100% 7T 100%
(%)
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29 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

29 RMBARZRE (&)

Particulars
of issued
Place of incorporation Principal activities and share capital/ Equity
Company name and kind of legal entity place of operation paid-up capital  Interest held
BRTRE/
NRER SRR EEERER TEXBREEHY BERAFE HEORE
LXL Capital VIII Limited "’ British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
Limited liability company. (indirect)
LXL Capital VIIl Limited 27 RBEAES EREAAH REER  ABRLES 100% 7T 100%
(%)
LXL Capital V Limited e British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
Limited liability company. (indirect)
LXL Capital V Limited %7 ABEAES EREAAH REER  ABRLES 100% 7T 100%
(%)
LXL Capital IX Limited M British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, British Virgin Islands US$100 100%
Limited liability company. (indirect)
LXL Capital IX Limited %7 KERIHE  BREAAF REER  ABRLES 100% 7T 100%
Gd)
Yorkastle Capital Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability company  Investment holding, Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100%
(indirect)
BEHEAERAR & BERAMRA REARK &% 1,000,000 7T 100%
(%)
Zhuhai Hengqin Kunlun Financial People’s Republic of China, Provision of financial services, RMB 50,000,000 100%
Exchange Limited Limited liability company. People’s Republic of China (indirect)
KEEERRMEBIFHPL mEARLNE - AREFAA REGHRE TEARLNE ARE 100%
BRAH 50,000,0007C i3

Note 1: No audited financial statements have been prepared as these
companies are incorporated in a jurisdiction which does not

have any statutory audit requirements.

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control.

On 29 January 2015, KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited, the then
controlling shareholder of the Company, and CITIC Securities
entered into a share purchase agreement (the “Share
Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which CITIC Securities has
agreed to acquire 1,200,000 shares of the Company (the “Sale
Shares”) from the controlling shareholder (the “Transaction”).
In accordance with the Share Purchase Agreement, CITIC
Securities has nominated CITIC Securities Overseas to
purchase the full legal and beneficial ownership of the Sales
Share. Subsequent to the completion of the Transaction, KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited ceased to be the fellow subsidiaries
and are now referred to as “other related parties” as they are
controlled by some common key management personnel.

As disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, KVB ZHHQ, entered into a membership
agreement with TPME during the year ended 31 December
2016. Pursuant to the membership agreement, TPME provides
a spot trading and settlement platform for precious metals
trading and the relevant consulting, training and management
services to KVB ZHHQ. TPME is controlled by CITIC Limited,
an entity incorporated in Hong Kong which has significant
influence over CITIC Securities Overseas.

As disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, as a result of the Suspension, the trading right of
TPME is fully impaired as at 31 December 2017.

For the outstanding balance due from or to related parties, net
amount is presented when the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts, and intends to settle on
a net basis.

fok B B 25 A I R

30 AL RS

i —J7T BB ) B M IE S = — T A
MBEREERREH S —HEEERTE
N BB B R - 7 X HARIESIE
DIVEER oL

RZE—RF—HZ+ThB XAFEK
72 i% A% BRKVB Kunlun Holdings Limited£2
A E] IR B E aE (RO EE
&) Bt RIEEFRE AR AR R I
f%1,200,0000& & A Bl IR 15 (T8 & AR5 1)
([x5%=1E]) - RERNHEE RS - P&
AEAF IR B R IEAE S B INGE B HHE IR KD K
EEHEERERBEEE - RTKRH1E
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited ™~ & [/ %
WEAR - RBAIEMmEKT] - REAA
KERETHREEEEAEZES o

BANGR A M SRR EIIE 22—
T-RFT_A=T—RHLLFEHH B
MNEBRERXNEECEBRIMILER
ek - RIFG B WE - REESTBIHF
RERNEERERH—EAESERERS
MEEF G UNARHENR  HIIREE
fR#% - REE B ZMETEFBERN
BRARES - ZARREBZMAL -
HPEEmBIMEEERTES -

A £ B R B EE1SPTRE -
FEE R2RSBIIHLIIEER
—E—tF A=t —ARHRE

LI M SR FE S RRRSE 0 R S BRI S

AEEBEESEZRHIRIHC R TR
WHIRFREAEEER 2 RFFE -
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related entities during the year:

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 30

(@) The Group had the following material transactions with its

BBAERS (&)

(@) AEBERFRNEHBBERETNE
AZS0WT :

2017 2016
—2-+tF —E-RF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Htat THET FET
Transactions with related parties BELTX5
Management fee expenses for the [T QA AT R
provision of financial system igg%%%;gg =
services vyh|ch include the prQV|S|on HE B A -
of enterprise resources planning
system support to: (i)
— the then immediate holding company ~ — & B EZZERAF 664 857
Amount paid for the provision of software R 22 &) 32 5 52 fH 81 4
development and maintenance ﬁ%é&%ﬁg%ﬁﬁé - Al
services, IT infrastructure project T;&%@Igiﬁ E:‘E&?‘ﬁ
management and maintenance :xﬂﬁ%&“gﬂﬁﬁt ~
) ) AT f AR 5 B RROE
services and IT risk assessment
services to:
—an other related party —H AR (ii) 25,757 24.970
Amount paid for the provision of foreign ~ FILA T A Al 2 (T fR #E5) [E
exchange conversion and settlement FARRKEH BRI R -
servicesa to:
— other related parties — H fth B R 75 (iif) - 557
Referral fee paid for introducing and W%T’Aiﬁiﬁﬂ%’d 3=
referring prospective clients to the JJE%E%}E TARKED
Group: BNE:
— an other related party — H A BARsE 75 (iv) 2,588 279
Purchases of fixed assets: BEETEE:
— an other related party —H A B v) - 970
Amount paid for the provision of software A N2 &2 (3R (AT
maintenance, upgrade and support Zﬁf BB IR R
services from: HIFOR
— an other related party — H BB 75 (vi) 353 1,260
Amount received for the sharing of the ~ FIA T R AIWEUCEA A
offices to: EH)FR -
— other related parties — H B 5 (vii) 3,143 3,235
Amount paid for the sharing of the offices to: a1 A N2 Al 2 i £ A A
ZEHRIE
— other related parties —H A BA R 7 (vii) 289 -

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

[SPas

El

B |

B3 S S R4 7

P S 7.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

fok B B 25 A I R

30 BEEEAXRB (&)

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Management fee expenses are charged for the provision
of financial system services which include the provision
of enterprise resources planning system support with
reference to the costs incurred.

Amounts are paid for provision of software development
and maintenance services, IT infrastructure project
management and maintenance services and IT risk
assessment services.

Amounts are paid for provision of foreign exchange
conversion and settlement services.

Referral fees are paid for introducing and referring
prospective clients to the Group in accordance with the fee
agreement.

Amounts are paid for the purchases of fixed assets based
on the agreement signed between parties.

Amounts are paid for the provision of software
maintenance, upgrade and support services based on the
terms on agreement signed between parties.

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

(a) (continued) (a) (&)
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat TR FHEIT
Cash dealing income for the provision of HIA T A FRIREEER S
cash dealing services: R WERH)ER £ 2 5 WK
A
— other related parties —H AR (viii) 1,136 4,251
Acquisition of the trading right to the RATABRBERER S
i REEF AR 5EN
spot trading and settlement platform zh'lg# =
provided by: BAEL
- TPME —REECBRIM (ix) - 1675
Membership management fee paid to: ~ AA T AR HHEEE
BE:
- TPME —REELBRSM (x) - 571
Amount due from related parties FE e B Bt 75 YRR OB
Balances with related parties: 1 E th AR 5 RO 4S8
- TPME —REELBRHM (i) 4,582 46,606
Notes: et -

BIE B RSB % R T ARTS -
ETEERHREEEREERAX
B2ZELNERMUER -

SR HER (TR 28 R A ARTS ~ E AR
FEEIA R BN MRS A A
R R B & £k AR 795 1 S A A SRR

392 (LS B 3450 T 4 PR S T A4
BB -

REUEGEANTARENES T
REBMZSOEN & -

BLAE B B B A M S BRI TR
YRETH) & T3 P38 R] 2 Wk T B SE ©

BLHR BT A T AR N SR AR TS
i S A5 B9 SR IR TH AR 3R AT 4955 3 P 2%
Al 2 Bha (R M EE ©
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(vii) Amounts are received and paid for the sharing of the
offices based on the agreement signed between parties.

(viii) Cash dealing income is recognised when cash dealing
transactions have been completed by market makers with
reference to prevailing exchange rate.

(ix) Amounts are paid for the trading right to the spot trading
and settlement platform for precious metals trading based
on the agreement signed between parties.

(x) Membership management fee is charged based on the
agreement signed between parties.

(xi) Deposits placed are unsecured and non-interest bearing.
(b) Key management includes directors (executive & non-

executive) and the remuneration of the key management
personnel of the Group discloses in Note 28.

31 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating lease commitments

The Group leases offices under non-cancellable operating
lease commitments existing at the year end. Leases were
negotiated for an average term of 3 to 5 years.

The Group is required to give six-month notice for termination
of these leases.

29 BBARB (&)

31

(@ (#&)
Hiat - (&

(vii) RIRFTHIRTTRRA] 2 =k 2L A
= B JE UL N AN BROR -

>

(vil) B2 32 5) I A A 7 4555 R S B
RHBLERITEERR -

kP

(x) RMESBRZIZHEERXHREHETF
BZ R SREMm XA FRIATIRIERT
R TTPERR] 2 kM EE °

x) EEEBEDNRBEITOZHIEITZ
1hh 2 YR ER

(xi) MIfFBRZERBEERNRRE
(b) REEFEERE (BENITRIER

TESR) REEEEABNHMRK
FE28 FE ©

AERBARER
REBERRE

AREBEIRBERSFREANT A HEHLZ
HEAREHERAE - HEKRFH=51
FhER -

ANEE A HNER B AT IEZER

2017 2016

—E—-+tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT THAT

Within one year —F R 10,826 15,342
One to five years —ERF 8,357 12,889
19,183 28,231
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 25 January 2018, the Company entered into subscription
agreements with BC Global Fund SPC — BC Fintech Fund
and PA Investment Funds SPC for the account of PA High
Technology Fund SP, to issue 7.5% convertible bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200 million (the “Bonds”).
The Bonds are convertible up to 326,264,273 conversion
shares (which are fully-paid ordinary shares upon issue)
which will be issuable by the Company upon the exercise
of the conversion rights attached to the Bonds in full at the
conversion price of HK$0.613 per conversion share, subject to
adjustment.

The issue of the Bonds and the right of conversion into shares
of the Company attached to the Bonds were approved and
authorised by the shareholders under general mandate at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 10 May 2017.

The estimate net proceeds from the issue of the Bonds will be
HK$199.28 million. The Company currently intends to use the
estimated net proceeds for investment in financial assets and
working capital purposes.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for
issue by the Board of Directors on 16 March 2018.
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A summary of the results and of the financial position of KVB

Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with

its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the last five financial years, as

extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out

UTEIERBERCREEEGRAR (AR
Al EREMBAFTSBEIAEE]BER
B BFERE 2 FEMMBERAME - TifEERE
BEHELEZ 2T BE®RE -

below.
For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=+—-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
B+t TR —T-HF —E-NF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FETT FHET FET FHET
Total income DN L] 514,932 362,607 406,811 188,634 176,719
Profit before tax BR % A 4 A 35,019 54,243 128,149 47,697 50,130
Profit for the year F R F 27,354 38,688 94,709 35,081 34,774
Total comprehensive income FAZENREHE
for the year 31,212 40,716 83,328 29,785 33,010
As at 31 December
Rt+t=B=+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—t+F —Z-RF T-HF —T-NF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHEx FETT FHET FET FHET
Total assets EEME 1,400,785 1,082,158 1,088,776 626,510 569,993
Total liabilities BEESE (853,558) (567,641) (603,366) (233,787) (187,894)
547,227 514,517 465,410 392,723 382,099
Total equity and liabilities BEZRAE 1,400,785 1,082,158 1,068,776 626,510 569,993
Net current assets MENEEFE 505,056 475,645 447,080 379,837 375,403
Total assets less current BEERRDAE
liabilities 550,638 515,368 466,049 392,929 382,374
Note: /jﬁti—{ ;

The summary of the financial information of the Group for year ended 31

December 2012 have been extracted from the prospectus of the Company

dated 11 June 2013. Such summary was prepared as if the current structure

of the Group had been in existence throughout these financial years.

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED  F&. i[5 5% 4 il 4 [ 5 PR A
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BERBENREE A AR HEAE=ZT—=F/<A
T—BZBKRER - SR E RN K E IR R
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KVB Kunlun
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KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited
(REAEHSEMAILNABRAF)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability )

BENEMTHEA1RIRRE S EH7587501 % 7508E
Suites 7501 & 7508, 75F, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong
T (852) 3120 8888 F (852) 3120 8800
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